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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

DAVID A, WOOD, MAYOR QFFICE OF THE MAYOR

June 25, 2012

Members of the Common Couneil
Mishawaka, Indiana

Dear Council Members:

In accordance with Indiana statute, I hereby transmit to you the annual financial report of
the City of Mishawaka as of December 31, 2011

The city administration assumes responsibility for this report and believes that the data, as
presented, is complete and accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the city as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
the maximum understanding of Mishawaka's financial affairs have been included.

In developing and evaluating the city's accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are discussed by the
Controller in her accompanying lefter of transmittal and, within that framework, I believe that the
city's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.

Indiana law requires that the financial statements of the city be audited by the State Board of
Accounts. This requirement has been met and the auditor's opinion is included in the compliance
section of this report.

The preparation of this annual financial report could not have been accomplished without
the professional competence and dedication of City Controller Yvonne Milligan and her entire staff.
Their efforts over the years to upgrade the accounting and financial reporting systems of the city
have substantially improved the quality of information being reported to Mishawaka citizens, the
Common Council and Indiana oversight boards.

All of us in Mishawaka can take great pride that for the twenty fifth consecutive year
Mishawaka earned the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the
Government Financial Officers Association. This is the highest form of recognition in the arca of
governmental financial reporting. Few municipalities in the State of Indiana ever receive this
prestigious award.

City Hall - 600 East Third Street - P.O. Box 363 « Mishawaka, Indiana 46548-0363
Telephone: (574) 258-1601 - Facsimile; (574) 258-1603 + E-Mail: mayor@mishawaka.in.gov
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In closing, I publicly thank the Controller and her staff for the capable and
competent manner in which they perform their many duties. The Controller's Office has
enhanced public respect, confidence and trust in local government. The personnel in this
office continue to be a tremendous source of assistance and support for every city employee
and resident.

Therefore, it is with great pride and satisfaction that I transmit this financial report
and assure you and our community that the fiscal management and reporting of our city
government meets every recognized standard of excellence!

' ’3 vi/A/. Wood, Mayor




CITY OF MISHAWAKA

' BAVID A, WOOD, MAYOR

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

Yvonne Milligan, Controiier
Rebecca Miller, Deputy Controlier

June 25, 2012

To the Honorable Mayor David A. Wooed,
Members of the Common Council, and
the Residents of the City of Mishawaka:

‘The Comprehensive Ammual Financial Report of the City of Mishawaka, Indiana for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2011 is hereby submitted.

This report was prepared by the City Controller's Office in conjunction with the State Board of Accounts of the State
of Indiana. Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of the presentation rests with the city. -We
believe the data as presented is accurate in all material respects and is presented fairly as set forth in the financial
position of the governmental activities, the business type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the city as of December 31, 2011 and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
the maximum understanding of the city's financial affairs have been included. The financial statements of the City
of Mishawaka for the year-ended December 31, 2011 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.

Internal contrel is a major part of managing a city it is not a one time event, but an ongoing series of actions and-
events that occur in a municipality, Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and reliability of financial records for
preparing the financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets

The City of Mishawaka’s accouniing systern was last updated in 2005. In 2011 the City of Mishawaka again
upgraded the accounting and payroll system. The City of Mishawaka went from an AS400 environment to a web
browser environment. Updating an accounting system is often needed to adequately report and record financial data
along with being able to stay compliant with laws and regulations. Consideration is also given to the adequacy of
internal controls when updating an accounting system. We believe that the City of Mishawaka’s internal controls .
adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording of financial transactions.
Reasonable assurance of the cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits to be derived and the valuation
of costs requires estimates and judgments by the city. Many policies and procedures have been put into place at the
City of Mishawaka to assure the best possible performance. Key items: written cash handling policy, Capital Asset
policy, and periodic inventories overseen by the controller’s office. Internal controls are tested continuously by the
City Controller’s Office.

The State Board of Accounts of the State of Indiana, have issued an unqualified opinion on the City of Mishawaka’s
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. The independent auditor’s opinion is located at the front
of the financial section of this report. "

The city is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, the provisions of the Indiana
Code section 5-11-1-9 and the requirements of the Indiana State Board of Accounts. Informatien related to the
single audit, including the schedule of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and the auditors’ reports on
the internal control structure and compliance with laws and regulations, is included in this document.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Mishawaka’s MD&A can be found immediately following the -
report of the independent auditors.

The following pages of this transmittal letter include a general overview of the City of Mishawalka with dlscussmn

Bty Fialr “s00 Bane Phird Siraet "B E PR SRS S KREHRWAKS (Ritiana 46545-0363

Telephone: (574) 258-1622 « FAX (574) 258-1724
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CITY PROFILE

The City of Mishawaka was incorporated as a city in 1899, The City of Mishawaka is located in the north central
part of the State of Indiana. Mishawaka is approximately 100 miles east of Chicago and {40 miles north of
Indianapolis. The city currently occupies a land area of approximately 17.68 square miles and serves a population of
48,252(2010 Census). The central government of the city consists of the Mayor (chief executive officer) and a nine-
member Common Council six members of which are elected by districts each serving a four-year term. The City of
Mishawaka also elects a City Clerk.

The City of Mishawaka provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, maintenance of
highways, streets and other infrastructure, economic redevelopment, and recreational activities. Other services
provided are a municipal utility including, electric, wastewater and water services.

The City of Mishawaka does not have any component units. The Mishawaka-Penn Public Library, Mishawaka
School City and the Mishawaka Housing Authority have been determined to be separate reporting entities.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Mishawaka’s financial planning and control. Budgetary
controls are maintained at the fund Jevel. The Mishawaka City Council is required to adopt a final budget by no
later than October 31st of each year. Budget to actual comparisons demonstrate how actual revenues and
expenses/expenditures compare to both the original and final revised budgets. The following schedule identifies
where these comparisons can be found.

Starting
Page
Governmental Major Funds 64
Governmental Non-Major Funds 67

ECONOMIC CONDITION

The City’s major challenges are to provide the infrastructure, services and public safety needed to maintain the
quality of life, which has attracted considerable growth to our city. The economic condition and outlook of the
government continues to show stable growth and vitality. The City of Mishawaka is a growing community with a
highly diversified economic base. To maintain the attractiveness of the City of Mishawaka we must balance our
support systems with our quality of life amenities.

The City of Mishawaka has made hard choices in the last six years to position ourselves for the downturn in the
economy that occurred in 2009. The City of Mishawaka has continued to grow in 2011 but at a slower pace than we
would like. We continue to make the long-term investments in our infrastructure and to then maintain those
investments over time. Despite recent staff reductions the City of Mishawaka continues to maintain such services as
street sweeping and leaf collections to keep our neighborhoods clean and an attractive place to live.

The City of Mishawaka has access to Interstate 80/90, U.S. Highways 6, 20, 31 and several state highways. The city
also has access to a regional airport which is the second busiest airport in Indiana and the only one in the country
that is a tri-modal airport, with air, rail and bus lines.

Because of the geographically central location, traffic counts on arterial streets reach 28,000 vehicles per day. The
transportation plan is an important facet of the comprehensive plan adopted in 1992 entitled "Mishawaka 2000."

Mishawaka's 2000 Census population was 46,557 the population of Mishawaka increased to 48,252 or 3.6%
according to the 2010 U.S. Census. Steady job growth and population growth have contributed to the stability of the
community. As of October 2011 the South Bend/Mishawaka area unemployment rate was 9.6% compared to 10%
in 2010. The South Bend/Mishawaka area overall resident employment stands at 129,274 for 2011 compared to
125,853 in 2010,
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Locally there are several colleges with over a 20,000 combined student population. Some universities and technical
schools include Bethel College in Mishawaka, the University of Notre Dame, Indiana University South Bend, Saint
Mary’s College and Ivy Tech Community College.

The largest employers in Mishawaka are in the Health, Education and Retail fields. The St. Joseph Regional
Medical Center employs approximately 2556 people, the School City of Mishawaka employs an estimate of 1010
people and Meijer Retail employs approximately 654 people.

The total estimated value of new construction in Mishawaka during 2011 was $44.8 million. Residential permits
totaled $8.9 million and the commercial permits totaled $33.8 million. Highlighting the 2011 completed projects
was the new AHEPA Penelope Apartments ($4,794,106), Well Pet Addition ($2,593,310), Gurley Leep Addition
($1,043,000) and Papa Vino’s Restaurant alterations ($900,000).

In 2011, 4 new commercial permits, and 134 commercial alterations/additions were issued with a value of $37.9
million. New single family housing was the same in 2011 (22) as in 2010 with a $2.9 million value. Although the
City of Mishawaka is benefiting from long—term strategic planning, such as the relocation of the St. Joseph Regional

Medical Center, the poor housing market, saturated retail market, and the effects of the economic recession continue
to be a drag on the quantities of new construction in Mishawaka.

Two voluntary annexations occurred in 2011, These annexations added a total of 14.0 acres to the City of
Mishawaka.

Retail sales in Mishawaka totaled $1.8 billion according to a 2007 survey of market data by the U.S. Census Bureau.
In 2011 the City of Mishawaka continues to experience business retention and neighborhood revitalization.

48 tax abatements have been issued by the City of Mishawaka since 1986. 41 of the 48 abatements issued have been
in the industrial-manufacturing area and 32 of the 48 were issued to different companies. The City of Mishawaka
awarded one tax abatement in 2011, At the end of 2011, only 8 tax abatements were outstanding.

ECONOMIC INDICATORS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Population 48252 48252 46557 46557 46557 46557 46557
Assessed Value (in billions) 1.4 14 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.5
Doltar Value of Building Permits

(in millions) 45 42, 53. 316, 116. 108. 90,
Building Permits- New Construction 32 31 40 67 136 125 162

Labor Force (St. Joseph County) 129,274 125,853 123,867 133,363 133,337 134,788 133,939
Sources: Stats Indiana, Indiana Employment and Security adjusted in 2011,
MAJOR INITIATIVES/PROGRAMS

The following initiatives, some new and some on-going are briefly outlined to indicate the challenges and
opportunities related to development currently facing the City.

Maintaining the city’s long term financial health is the number one priority for the year 2011 and beyond. Trying to
control property taxes and still maintaining the services that are required will be a difficult process in the years to
come. In 2007 legislation was passed to cap residential property tax at one percent by the year 2010. This legislation
has put a burden on municipalities to spend tax dollars wisely. In 2009 St Joseph County implemented a new Local
Option Income Tax, this tax helped to fund Public Safety Capital needs in 2011 and will also help fund any future
capital needs for public safety.
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In 2004 the City of Mishawaka initiated a comprehensive plan update. The completion of the plan was broken into
six elements. One crucial element was a housing inventory survey mailed to every Mishawaka Municipal Utility
Customer and every applicable department within the city.

The city’s neighborhood stabilization plan continues to be implemented in 2011. The City Planning Department
revitalized an older park for the Hillis Hans Park Neighborhood. This resulted in an $80,000.00 site improvement
plan will be a safer, cleaner, and more secure neighborhood.

The City of Mishawaka entered into an agreement with Casteel Construction in December of 2011 to build a new
Fire Station near the Capital Avenue Corridor. With all the changes in the Capital Avenue Area and the opening of
the Main Street Underpass it was time to review the Fire District and make changes as necessary.

The city in cooperation with the Solid Waste District continues a staffed Houschold Hazardous (HIII) waste
collection facility. This facility is staffed full time throughout the year. The site provides residents a place to dispose
of waste materials that would otherwise be disposed of in a less than favorable manner.

One of the largest projects under constroction is the Capital Avenue/SR 331 urban expressway. This highway will
connect two major roadways, the Indiana Toll Road (Interstate 80/90) and US Highway 20. This roadway will open
up important economic development opportunities in the corridor. Several acres of land have been annexed
bordering the Capital Avenue corridor for future development.

The City is continuing to develop a countywide Geographic Information System (GIS). Several strategic plans for
improvement have been finalized. The entire application data has been moved to a faster server and the software
version has been updated at the workstation level. The GIS computer technology combines mapping and
information stored as data that can be collated and retrieved by location. The benefits include improved regional
planning and intergovernmental communication; enhanced access and coordination of vital information for police,
fire and EMS; soil, drainage and topography can be layered over parcels to provide quick site analysis, immediate
and easy access fo infrastructure, utilities and drainage data; and tand use management.

The Mishawaka River Walk continues to be constructed with the newest finalized piece being the
Merrifield/Crawford Park Connector. The City of Mishawaka River Walk connects neighborhoods and parks while
also taking advantage of the view of the St. Joseph River. The city has applied for future funding and expansion of
the River Walk through Merrifield Park.

Several projects are being considered in 2012 with the Mishawaka Park Department: Improvements to Mary
Gibbard Pool and Park, bridge improvements at the Eberhart Golf Course, Major playground equipment at Central
Park are amongst a few of the projects considered for 2012,

Despite the downturn in construction significant vacant and underutilized space was renovated and occupied in the
Historic Downtown Mishawaka in 2011,

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Indiana state statute IC 5-13-1 requires each municipality to be audited by the State Board of Accounts, an agency of
the State of Indiana. This requirement has been satisfied and the auditor's opinion has been included in this report.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Mishawaka for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of a state and local
government financial report.
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In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Mishawaka has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty five consecutive years (years ended December 31, 1986-2010). We
believe our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff of the Controller’s Office.
Appreciation is extended to Deputy Controller Rebecca Miller. 1 would like to thank Doug Wiecse Area Supervisor
for the State Board of Accounts and the Area Field Examiners Martha Harper and John Rucano for their assistance
and encouragement. They have our sincere appreciation for the preparation of this report, Acknowledgment should
also go to Mayor David A. Wood and the members of the Mishawaka Common Council for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City.

Respectfully submitted

-

Yvonne Milligan
City Controller

Staff:  Rebecca Miller, Deputy Controller
Kim Hill
Misti Horvath
Amber Robinett
Brian Hall
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STATE OF INDIANA

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
302 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
ROOM E418
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/shoa

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOC: THE OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF MISHAWAKA, ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Mishawaka (City),
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's primary government
basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporfing. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedules of Funding Progress, Schedules of
Contributions From the Employer and Other Contributing Entities, and Budgetary Comparison Schedules, as
listed in the Tabie of Contents, are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on i,



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Continued)

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 21,
2012, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compifance
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collec-
tively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmaijor fund financial statements, other budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical tables are pre-
sented for purpeses of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmaijor fund statements and other budgetary comparison schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory sections and statistical tables have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

May 21, 2012
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City of Mishawaka, Indiana
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2011

As management of the City of Mishawaka, we offer the readers of the City of Mishawaka’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Mishawaka for the
fiscal yvear ended December 31, 2011 We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our basic financial statements and notes
to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of Mishawaka’s financial performance.

As with other sections of this financial report, the information contained within this MD&A should be
considered only a part of a greater whole. The readers of this statement should take time to read and
evaluate all sections of this report, including the Transmittal Letter, city’s financial stafements, and the
other Required Supplemental Information (“RSI™) that is provided in addition to this MD&A.

Financial Highlights

s  The assets of the City of Mishawaka exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year (2011) by
$309,544,323. Of this amount, $71,151,132 (unzestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City
of Mishawaka’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

s  The government’s total assets increased by $17,340,817. Of this amount governmental activities

. assets increased by $10,614,953 and business type activities imcreased by $6,725,864. The
beginning balances for governmental activities have been restated from the 2010 CAFR.

¢+ Beginning in fiscal year 2011, the City of Mishawaka implemented GASB Statement 54, which
provides new fund balance classifications for governmental funds. The previous reserved and
unreserved classifications have been replaced with non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned
and unassigned balances. Additional information on the City of Mishawaka fund balances can be
found in Note ID.10 of the basic financial statements.

e Ag of the close of fiscal year 2011, the City of Mishawaka’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $68,139,091, an increase of $6,108,034 from restated figures
for 2010,

e At the end of 2011, the unassigned fund balance for the General fund was $6,113,323 (20.4% of
General Fund Expenditures} compared to $5,554,114 for 2010 which was about 19.0% of total
general fund expenditures for that year.

e The City of Mishawaka’s total debt outstanding for General, Revenue and Special Obligation
Bonds decreased during the current fiscal year by anet of $6,684,878.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an infroduction to the City of Mishawaka’s basic
financial statements. Those statements are comprised of the following components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The govermnment-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all government and
business-type activities are consolidated in columns, which add to a total for the Primary Government.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Mishawaka’s assets and liabilities
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Mishawaka is improving or
deteriorating.




The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are recorded in the period in which the underlying
event takes place, which may differ from the period in which the cash is received or disbursed. The
statement is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of various governmental
services and business type activities net of the related revenues, as well as a separate presentation of
revenues available for general purposes.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish the functions of the City of Mishawaka that
are principally supported by faxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Mishawaka mclude general
govenment, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, community development, culture and
recreation and interest on long-term debt. The business type activities of the City of Mishawaka include a
water, wastewater and electric utility. The major governmental activities of the City of Mishawaka consist
of General Government, TIF NW General and Local Major Moves Construction funds.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and reporting of resources that are
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Mishawaka, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Mishawaka are divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary funds. The focus is on Major Funds.

Governmental funds: Govermmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a govermment’s near-termt financing requirements.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

General Government Revenues

The following schedule presents a summary of general revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Revenues 2011 Amount % of Total
Taxes: General Property $ 45,201,867 64.60%
Licenses and permits 418,629 60%
Intergovernmental 18,452,396 26.37%
Charges for services 4,191,957 5.99%
Fines and forfeits 55,008 08%
Interest 34,289 . 05%
Sales and Use of Property 276,241 39%
Gifis and Donations 120,587 A7%
Other 1,225.387 1.75%
Total $69.976.451 100.00%

As shown above, the City of Mishawaka’s single largest source of revenue is generated by property
taxation, This revenue is based on a relationship between assessed property valuation of industrial,
commercial and residential parcels, both real and personal and the application of a tax rate to arrive at the
total levy. Taxable property is assessed at 100% of the true tax value.

The City of Mishawaka has the ability through the State of Indiana to increase its general property 1ax levy
by a maximum of 5%. In 2011 the increase was 2.9%. The above property tax revenue includes taxes
collected on behalf of the following fiunds: General Fund, Park and Recreation Fund, Motor Vehicle
Highway Fund, Cumulative Capital Development Fund, Cumulative Sewer Fund, Cumulative Fire




Equipment and Building Fund, Levy Excess Fund, various capital funds for the City of Mishawaka’s
Redevelopment Tax Incremental Financing {TTF) Funds and a special levy to cover debt service on general
obligation bonds. Approximately 62.0% of the General Funds 2011 total revenue was derived from
property taxes, the TIF NW General derived 99.5% of its revenue from property tax and the Other
Governmental Funds property tax percentage was 32.92% of total revenue.

EDIT, COIT and LOIT were established to support the purpose of taking the tax burden away from
homeowners. The vears of distribution listed are on a cash basis not accrual. Intergovernmental revenune
primarily consists of Economic Development Income Tax (EDIT), County Option Income Tax (COIT) and
Public Safety Local Option Income Tax (LOIT). Economic Development Income Tax was enacted July 1,
1995 at one-tenth. of a percent (0.1%) but was then increased by ordinance beginning in 1998 to two-tenths
of a percent (0.2%) and in 2009 it was increased to its maximum of (0.4%). The city received $1,404,697,
$3,531,576 and $2,636,726 of CEDIT distributions for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively. County
Option Income Tax was enacted in July of 1997 at two-tenths of a percent (0.2%) and increased yearly by
one-tenth of a percent (0.1%) to a maximum of six-tenths of a percent (0.6%). The city received
$2,954,165, $2,891.687 and $2,537.616 of COIT distributions for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively. In October of 2009 a Public Safety Local Option Income Tax was enacted at .25%. The city
received $2,432,036 and $1,911,804 of LOIT distributions for the years 2010 and 2011. Other
intergovernmental revenue includes alcoholic beverage tax, wheel tax, vehicle excise tax and cigarette tax.
User fees are analyzed each year with future increases to be implernented to help shift some of the burden
of taxation.

General Government Expenditures
The following schedule presenis a summary of general government expenditures for the vear ended
December 31, 2011.

Expenditures 2011 Amount % of Total
General Government $ 7.,727.427 12.18%
Public Safety 27,819,906 43.86%
Highways and Streets 12,912,960 20.36%
Sanitation 1,954,482 3.08%
Culture and Recreation 5,245,371 8.27%
Community Development 2,234,087 3.52%
Debt service 5,535,256 8.73%
Total $ 63.429.489 100.00%

The City of Mishawaka breaks its general government expenditures into six categories: general
government, public safety, highways and streefs, sanitation, culture and recreation, and community
development. Combined in the expenditure totals are also capital outlay which is listed separately on the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for governmental funds. Debt service is
also listed separately in the report. As you can see in the above summary, Public Safety has the highest total
of expenditures at $27,819,906 or 43.86% of the total expenditures while Highways and Streets and
General Government are at 20.36% and 12.18% respectively. Data for each non-major fund is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
staterments, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City of Mishawaka’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Mishawaka maintains 46 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General, TIF NW General, and the Local Major Moves Construction funds




all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined and presented in one
column labeled Other Governmental Funds. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Mishawaka adopts an annual appropriated budget for the majority of its funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the major funds to demonstrate compliance with the budgets as
required supplementary information.

Proprietary funds: Proprictary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. Information is provided separately in the proprietary statement of
net assets and the proprietary statement of revenues, expense and changes in fund net assets for the electric,
water and wastewater utility which are considered major funds. Proprietary funds use the acerual basis of
accounting. The City of Mishawaka maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City of Mishawaka maintains three enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and
wastewater utility. Tnternal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City of Mishawaka’s various functions. The City of Mishawaka uses an internal
service fund to account for its seff-funding group health insurance and an additional internal service fund to
account for the Mishawaka Local Bond Bank. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type activities, it has been included within the governmental activities in the
governmeni-wide financial statements but is combined into an aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the City of Mishawaka. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Mishawaka’s own operations.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The City of Mishawaka’s fiduciary duties are accounted for in both Trust and Agency Funds. The primary
trust funds are the Police Pension, Fire Pension, and Utility Pension Funds. The two Agency funds are the
Redevelopment Revolving and a Special Judgment Fund.

Pension Trust Fund Operations

Most City of Mishawaka employees are covered by the Public Employees Retirement Fund and the 1977
Police Officers’ and Firefighters’ Pension Fund, both administered by the State of Indiana. However,
certain police officers and firefighters hired before May 1, 1977, who did not opt into the 1977 fund,
continue to be members of the 1925 Police Pension and the 1937 Firefighters™ Pension Fund. These two
funds are administered by the Local Pension Board. This group of police officers and firefighters are
continuing to decline, both as a total member and as a percentage of total payrolls of both the police and
fire departments and of the City as a whole. In 2009 the State of Indiana tock over the funding of the 1925
and 1937 Police and Fire Pension. This funding will be paid directly to the City of Mishawaka through the
State of Indiana Pension Relief Fund.

The Utility Pension fund covers all the City of Mishawaka utility workers except for sewer employees who
are covered by PERF. The Utility Pension fund is administered by the City of Mishawaka’s Board of
Works and provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Funding
requirements are established by the plan administrator. Currently, employees are not required to make any
contributions to the plan. The Utility Pension Plan is funded by revenue received from utility services.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also provides certain
required supplementary information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-
major governmental funds, internal service funds and fiduciary funds are presented immediately after the
basic financial statements. Also mcluded are budget comparisons for governmental funds other than the
General Fund, TIF NW General Fund and the Local Major Moves Construction Fund which are major
funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statement Analysis

Sammary of Net Assets
The following table reflects a snmmary of Net Assets compared to the prior year
City of Mishawaka
Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets $80,494212 $76125965 $61,763,123 $67322.032 $142,257335 $143.448,001
Capital assets 146.195.152 144,064 302 178446825 172,573,966 324.641.977 316638268

Total assets 226.689,364 220190271 240200948 239895908 466899312 460.086.269
Long-term [iabilities 39,273,885 42132794 106,570,001 108,993 413 145,843,886 152,126,207
Other liabilities 2293135 3,550,086 9.217.968 12.206.470 11,571,103 15,756,556

Total liabilities 41.567.020 45,682 820 115.787.96% 122.199.883 157.354989 167.882.763
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 134,670,237 136,795,681 93,926,064 62,884,653 228,596,301 199,680,334

Restncted 2,839,701 2,692,556 6,957,189 7,378,580 9,796,890 10,771,136
Urwestricted 47.612.406 35.019.154 23,538,726 47.432 882 71,151,132 82,452,038
Total net assets $185.122344  $174.507.391  $124.421979 $117.656.115 $309.544,323 §292 203,506

Normal Impacts
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
Capital assets are used to provide services to citizens and they are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Current and other assets consist mainly of cash, investments, and receivables from property taxes,
intergovernmental sources, and interest. Capital assets include land, improvements to land, construction in
progress, buildings and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure such as roads, and sidewalks and
curbs. Long-term liabilities consist mainly of notes and loans payable, bonds payable and capital leases.
Other liabilities include mainly accounts payable, accrued payroll, customer deposits and taxes payable.

Borrowing of capital will increase current assets and long-term debt. Spending borrowed proceeds on new
capital will reduce current assets and increase capital assets. Spending of non-borrowed current assets on
new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital assets and will reduce unrestricted nets assets
and increase invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Principal payment on debt will reduce current
assets and reduce long-term debt and reduce unrestricted net assets and increase mvested in capital assets,
net of related debt. Reduction of Capital Assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and invested
in capital assets, net of related debt.




Current Year Impacts

At December 31, 2011, the City of Mishawaka’s assets exceeded liabilities by $309,544,323 an increase of
$17.3 million from the previous vear (based on restated values). The largest portion of the City of
Mishawaka’s net assets reflects its investnent in capital assets (73%), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding.

At the end of 2011, the City of Mishawaka was able to report positive balances in all categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same held true for the prior year 2010.

At year end the City of Mishawaka’s net assets were $309,544,323. This amount is made up of
$228,596,301 invested in capital assets {e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment} net of related
debt, $9,796,890 assets with external restrictions upon its use, and $71,151,132 of unrestricted assets that
are available for future use as directed by management.

Summary of Changes in Net Assets
The following table summarizes the changes in net assets for the current and previous year.

City of Mishawaka
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services $5,933,085  $4,909.853  §70,922488 569409116 $76,855573  $74,318,969
Operating grants and contributions 4411769 4490139 4411,769 4,490,139
Capital grants and contributions 5,834,032 6,851,310 167,104 6,652,868 6,001,136 13,504,178
General revenues:
Property taxes 44,782,236 49,872,423 44,782,236 48 872 423
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs 8,206,595 8,570,832 8,206,595 8,570,832
Unrestricted investment earnings 34,289 42251 112,130 5,686 146,419 57,937
Other revenue 354,814 115,993 354 814 115,993
Total revenues $69.556.820  $74.832. 801 $71.201.722  $76.077.670 $140,758.542  $150.930,471
EXPENSES
General government 7,967,985 7,509,133 7,967 985 7,509,133
Public safety 20631615  28970,116 26,631,615 28970116
Highways and streets 6,927174 1,816,872 6,927,174 1,816,872
Sanitation 1,954,482 1,958,050 1,954,482 1,958,050
Community development 2,191,347 1,936,054 2,191,347 1,936,054
Culture and recreation 6,062,941 4,939,870 6,062,941 4,539,870
Interest on long-terim debt 627,328 862,291 627,328 562,291
Water utility 6,699,816 6,779,663 6,699,816 6,779,663
Wastewater utility 11,541,256 11,507,526 11,541,256 11,567,526
Electric utility 49813 781 49900996 49813 78] 45.900.996
Total expenses $55.362.872 547992386 568,054,853  $68.188,185 $123417.725 §116.180.571
Changes in net assets
before transfers 14,193,948 26,860,415 3,146,869 7,889,485 17,340,817 34749900
Transfers (3,578,995} (762.,454) 3,578,995 762,454
Change in net assets 10,614,953 26,097,961 6,725,864 8,651,939 17,340,817 34,749 900
Net assets-Beginning, restated 174507391 148409430 117696115 109044176 292203 506 257.453.606
Net assets-Ending $185,122.344  $174,507.391 $124,421,979 $117,696,115 $309,544,323 $292.203,506




Normal Impacis

Revenue:

When comparing revenue, economic conditions can reflect a declining, stable or growing environment and
may have a great impact on property, sales, gas and other taxes as well as public spending for building
permits, user fees and volumes of consumption. While certain tax rates are set by statute, the City Council
has authority to impose and increase or decrease rates (utility charges, user fees, permits, etc.). Certain
recurring revenues (block grants, state sharing, etc.) may experience changes periodically while others (or
one-time) grants are less predictable and may often distort revenue comparisons from year to year.

Expenses:

Within certain expense categories (Police, Fire, Parks and Recreation, etc.), programs added or deleted
from year to year may change to meet community needs. Staffing needs may change from year to year to
meet the changes in services. Staffing costs (salaries and benefits) represent 69.7% of the city’s primary
government operating cost. Some functions may experience unusual changes due to the specific cost (fuel,
chemicals, etc.)

Current Year Impacts
Governmental Activities:

Net assets of the governmental activities increased from 2010 to 2011 by $10.6 million after the
restatement.

Charges for services revenue increased $1.0 million or 20.8%. In 2011 Emergency Medical Service run
rates were increased this increased the revenue by $885,000.00. Overall for the year 2011 most charges for
services revenue were stable. A nice warm summer had a slight increase in Park Revenue ($155,000).
Operating grants and contributions decreased $78 thousand from 2010. Public Safety Local Option Income
Tax had a slight decrease from 2010 (111,930). Contributions to the Park Gift fund were down in 2011 by
$19.023. An increase of $ 49,373 was seen in the HUD Block Grant for 2011.

Capital grants and contributions decreased by $1.0 million from 2010,

Property Taxes decreased due to a decline in collections as the 2011 collection percentage was 92.7%.

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs decreased from 2010 by $364 thousand.

Unrestricted mvestment earnings decreased by $7,962 due to the lower investment annual return for the
City.

Governmental expenses increased by $7.2 million or 15%.

Additional capital funding was used in Highways and Streets and Park and Recreation in 2011. Local major
moves and TIF funds have been appropriated for several large Highway and Street and Park Projects. The
completion of the Church Main Street Connector ($1.9 million), Main Street Improvements ($3.0 million)
and the River Center acquisitions ($947,000) we a few of the capital improvements made in 2011.

Business Type Activities:

Business Type Activities net assets increased by $8.6 million.

The electric and water utility saw a slight decrease in revenue ($160,000), ($210,000) respectively due to a
cooler summer. The wastewater utility had a revenue increase over fiscal year 2010 of $1,883,769 due to a

rate increase at the beginning of 2011, Overall the Mishawaka utility revenue seems 1o be fairly stable.

The expenses of the Business Type activities decreased slightly by $133,332.
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Fund Financial Statement Analysis

As noted earlier, the City of Mishawaka uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the City of Mishawaka can be divided into three
categories; government funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the City of Mishawaka’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Mishawaka’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Mishawaka’s governmentat funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $68,139,091 an increase of $6,108,034 after restatement from the prior year.

The Local Major Moves Fund was the only major fund that showed a decrease in the fund balance for
2011. The Local Major Moves Fund was set up through proceeds received from the State of Indiana from
the lease of the Indiana Toll Road. The funds received from this lease are to be used for major construction
in 2011 the City of Mishawaka started using these funds for three major road construction projects which in
turn lowered the fund balance.

The General fund had a slight increase in fund balance of $577 thousand and the NWTIF had an increase of
$4.5 million. Ongoing projects have an effect on the NW TIF balance. The NW TIF is a Capital
Improvements fund so when fewer projects are in progress the fund balance will increase or stay fairly
stable.

Several funds had lower fund balances at 2011 year end for example the Motor Vehicle Fund went from
$2.2 million to $898 thousand and Park and Recreation from $1.6 million to $640 thousand. Overall the
City of Mishawaka has very prudent spending philosophies and will continue this in the fufure. Individual
fund data for each of the non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of the combining
statements in the Supplemental Information portion.

The general fund is also the chief operating fund of the City of Mishawaka. As of December 31, 2011, the
unassigned balance was $6,113,323 and the total balance in the general fund was $6,131,24( an increase of
$577,126 from 2010. Each year the City of Mishawaka works hard at staying within our budget and being
prudent spenders.

As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 20.37% of the total
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 20.43% of the same amount.

Individual fund data for each non-major governmental fund is provided in the combining statements in the
Supplemental Information section of this report.

Proprietary Funds:
The City of Mishawaka’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Two out of the three utilities of the City of Mishawaka saw an increase in total net assets for 2011. Total
net assets for the City of Mishawaka proprictary funds increased by $6.7 million, of this, investment of
capital assets net of related debt increased by $31 million, restricted for debt service decreased $421,391
and unrestricted net assets decreased $23.9 million. Overall cash and cash equivalents decreased by $5
million and total capital assets increased $5.9 million. The 2010 figures have been restated for the
Wastewater utility. The total liabilities for the proprietary funds had a decrease from 2010 of $6.4 million.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found later in this report.
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The internal service funds unrestricted assets were $6.604,737 of this amount $4.8 million is set up in a
Local Mishawaka Bond Bank to be used for capital projects and borrowing as necessary and $1.2 million is
an intergovernmental loan.

Fiduciary Funds:
The City of Mishawaka’s fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found later in this report.

General Fund Badge(ary Highlights

The City of Mishawaka adopts an annual appropriated budget for its geperal fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The final budget was more than the original budget by $467,654. An amended original budget can be
explained by an encumbrance rollover, a current year budget increase or a reduction in budget by the state.
In 2011 the submitted budget to the state was increased with encumbrances from 20190, and an additional
appropriation of $270,000 which was to add funds for Health Insurance ($50,000), pension payments
($10,000), election expenses (40,000}, gasoline and oil (50,000) and overtime for public safety (120,000) to
the state so that we would be on an annual payment of pension contributions. The general fund budget is
reviewed throughout the year and amended from time to time with the approval of the City Council. The
City of Mishawaka tries to maintain its original budget by transferring funds from one account line to
another. If this does not cover expenses then the City of Mishawaka appropriates from its fund balance. At
the end of the f{iscal year the actual expenditures are projecied and the following financial information is
condensed from the required supplementary information and the budget comparison schedules.

The actual revenues in 2011 were $1,878,111 over budget and expenditures were $972,375 under budget.
Only one category of revenue was under budget in 2011 that category was Taxes. Actual shortage in taxes
compared to the budget was $915,761. All other categories were over budget for 2011. In 2011 the
Payment in Lieu of Taxes came in over budget by $2,100,000 and County Option Income Tax came in
higher by $637,000 than the budget. The City of Mishawaka continues to be frugal in its spending which
has held true for many years.

Capital Assets and Long Term Debt Liability:

Capital Assets

The City of Mishawaka’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at
December 31, 2011 amounts to $324,641,976 (net of accumulaied depreciation), which represents a net
increase (additions less retirements and depreciation) of $5.0million. This investment in capital assects
inchudes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, equipment, vehicles and roads. A detailed
note of these capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements (Note 111 C).

City of Mishawaka’s Capital Assets

(Net of depreciation)
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Land $12,684,266 $12,648,166 $1,508,260 $1,505,150 $14,192,526  $14,153,316
Construction in progress 42356492 42,616,756 16,708,335 19,183,022 59,064,827 61799778
Buildings 8,760,181 8,992,579 38,057,518 40,624,161 46,817,699 49,616,740
Improvements other

than buildings 13,722.221 14,321,649 102,362,458 89,800,877 116,084,679 104,122,526
Machinery and equipment 9,893,185 10,127,877 19,361,318 21,116,243 29254 503 31,244,120
Transportation equipment 448935 344 514 448,935 344,514
Infrastructure being depreciated _58,778.807 55.357.275 -0- 58.778.807 55.357.275

Total $146195152 3144 064302 F178446. 824 3172 573 967+* §324 641 976 $316.638. 269

*% Business type activities capital assets have been restated fram 2010
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Change in Capital Assets

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

Beginning Balance $144.064,302 $172,573,967 #+% $316,638.269
Additions 13,149,819 24,132,289 37,282,108
Retivements:

[oit 5,660,661 8,196,271 13,856,932

Other 630,167 1,963,739 2,613,906
Depreciation 5,324,135 8,314,117 13,638,252
Retirements * 615994 214.695 830,689
Ending Balance 5146195152 $178.446.824 3324 641,976

* Reduction in accumulated depreciation related to retirements.
*# Business type activities capital assets have been restated from 2010

Major capital asset projects completed and added during the current fiscal year include the

following:
. River Crossing II Expansion and Modification of CSO 19- $3.2 million
. North Main Improvements PH TV-352.4 million
. North Main Improvements PH IIT-$1.5 million
. Major Milburn Area Sewer Separation -$2.8 million
. Church Main Connector Improvements-$1.9 million
. Holycross Lift Station complete in 2011-$718,935
o 2011 Summer Street, Sidewalk and Curb Program- $592,045
. Edison Lakes Parkway Improvements completed in 2011-$518,600
. Edgewater Drive Improvements-$374,456
Debt Outstanding

At December 31, 2011, the City had a nuimber of debt issues outstanding. These issues included $5,750,000
of general obligation bonds, $5,870,000 of revenue bonds payable from governmental funds, and
851,598,474 of revenue bonds payable from enterprise funds. Under the Indiana Constitution and state
statute the City of Mishawaka’s general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation
based upon 2% of assessed value of real and personal property.

The City’s bonded debt decreased by $6,684.878 from the prior year.

Outstanding Bonded Debt at Year-end

2011 2010

Governmental:
General Obligation $ 3,750,000 $ 7,145,000
Tax Increment 5.870.000 9.210.000
Sub-total $11,620,000 $16,355,000

Business Type:
Water Utility $ 3,190,000 $3,495.,000
‘Wastewater Utility 48,408,474 50.053.352
Sub-total 51,598.474 53.548.352
Total $63,218,474 $69,903,352
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Principal payments of $4,735,000 and $2,220,000 (on bonds) were made in the governmental and business
type aclivities, respectively.

The City’s latest rating for its General Obligation Bonds was in 2009 which was A+. The previous General
Obligation rating was in 2005 which was an A.

The latest rating of Utility Revenue Bonds was with the Sewage Utility Revenue Bond of 2010 which was
an A+.

The City’s latest rating for its TIF Areca revenue bonds was an A in 2010 upgraded from a BBB+ in 2007.

A detailed listing of the c¢ity’s debt can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Note 111
H). A calculation of the City’s legal debt limitation can be found in the statistical section of this report.

Economic Factors and next year’s budgets and rates

The City of Mishawaka is located in the north central part of the State of Indiana. The City of Mishawaka is
approximately 140 miles north of Indianapolis and 100 miles east of Chicago. 2011 was another year of
gconomic strain across the country with Mishawaka being no exception. The City of Mishawaka’s building
permit total dollar amount was $44.9 million in 2011. Most areas of construction were up in 2011 in
comparison to 2(1¢. We are optimistic that Mishawaka will continue to grow in a stlow and orderly fashion.
The City of Mishawaka tends to be an affordable place to live the median home cost, obtained by Sterling
Best Places, is $91,240.00. Steady population growth has always contributed to the stability of the
community. Although the City of Mishawaka is benefiting from its long-term strategic planning, such as
the relocation of the new St. Joseph Regional Medical Center the actual lingering effects of the national
economic recession will continue to be a drag on new construction for years to come. The City of
Mishawaka’s 2000 census number was 46,557 the 2010 census number was 48,252 a 3.6% increase in the
last ten years. Unemployment in St Joseph County Indiana went from 10.0% in December of 2010 to 9.6%
in December of 2011. Labor force for St. Joseph County increased im 2011 to £29,274(December)
compared to 125,853 in 2010(December).

In 2005 the State of Indiana enacted a phase in of a circuit breaker. The circuit breaker legislation
(amended in 2008) had its greatest reduction of all residential property tax in 2010 (1%). In 2011 as a city
we will again revisit our fee structure. Our new ambulance run fees were enacted in January of 2011. The
higher fees will help us to increase staffing and add one more ambulance to the fleet. As a city, in 2011 we
will still have to keep our spending at a minimum, the city’s health insurance program will be adjusted, and
costs of services will be analyzed to best prepare the city for any fiture legislative changes in the property
tax laws. In 2011 the City of Mishawaka submitted another balanced budget. The City of Mishawaka has
had to make difficult decisions to be able to provide the best services to its citizens at the best cost possible.
T 2011 we received a 92.7% distribution of our property tax which left us short $1.7 million in funds but
with cautious spending and fiscal management we can make it through uncertain times.

The adopted FY2012 Civil City Budget is $47.718,745 which is 6.75% higher than in F¥2011. The
General Fund budget for FY2012 is $29,763,057 which is 9.0% higher than FY2011.

The last of a three year phase in of wastewater rate increases were completed in 2011. In 2012 the city will
work on an Electric and Water rate study for eventual rates increases in these utilities.

City Highlights:
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s In 2011 the Community Development Department again partnered with Habitat for Humanity to
build six new homes in Mishawaka.

s  The Redevelopment Department’s First Time Homebuyer Program continues to be a success in
2011. Since 2004 the Redevelopment Depariment has built 32 new homes through this
progra.

e In 2011 the city continued efforts to renovate an existing building built in 1924. The building
will be converted into a 32 unit apartment development for senior citizens. Once the
construction is complete, the apartments will provide independent housing for low to moderate
income citizens at least 55 years of age.

¢ In 2006, the City of Mishawaka began a partnership with Rivervalley Church and Vineyard
Community Church to create the program known as Sumuner in Service, In 2011, the city again
joined efforts with local faith-based organizations to complete service and repair projects on
eight homes in Mishawaka.

o For the last six years the City of Mishawaka Code Enforcement Department highlights 100
structures that they feel need attention and in 2011 87% of those highlighted were brought into
code compliance.

e  The City of Mishawaka milled 36,950 linear feet of street and resurfaced another 570 linear feet
of alley in 2011.

e In 2011 a preliminary Park Improvement plan was put together and some improvements have
already been compieted in 2011. Each budget year a specific amount will be set aside to
complete the plan within the next 10 to 15 years.

Requests for information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Mishawaka’s finances and to
demonstrate the City’s accountability to its taxpayers, creditors and for all those with an interest. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Office of the Controller, 600 E. 3¢ Street, Mishawaka, TN 46544 or by email at
www.mishawaka.in.gov.
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Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

CITY CF MISHAWAKA

STATEMENT CF NET ASBETS

December 31, 2011

Receivables {net of allowances for uncolleciibles):

Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Other
Intergovernmental
Internal balance
Loans
inventories
Prepaid expense
Deferred charges
Restricied assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Assets held for resale
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Net pension asset

Total assets
Liabitities

Accounis payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payabte
Contracts payable
Short-term loans payable
Taxes payable
Accrued inferest payable
Payable fror restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Accounts payable
Contracts payabie
Interest payable
Nencurrent liabilities:
Due within ope year;
General obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable
TIF bonds payable
Compensated absences
Capital lease obligations
Notes and locans payable
Due in more than cne year:

General obligation bonds payable (net of unamortized discounts)
Revenue bonds payable (net of unamoertized discounts

and deferred amount on refunding)

TIF bonds payabie (net of unamortized discounts}

Compensated absences
Notes and loans payable

Net other postemployment benefits obligation

Net pension obiigation
Total liahilities

Net Assets

invesied in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals

$ 58,728,969 $ 6,562,837 $ 65201806

- 8,271 8,271

2,992 556 - 2,092 668
661,081 4,270,467 4,931,548

- 207,186 207,186
1,406,317 - 1,406,317
394,020 {394,020) -
5,964 491 - 5,964,491
- 2,605,784 2,605,784

458,018 391,217 848,233
105,112 1,291,987 1,367 099
2,754,736 46,750,720 49,505,456
84,965 - 84,965
6,943,837 - 6,943,837

55,040,756 18,216,595 73,267,353
91,154,394 160,230,230 251,384,624
- 68,574 68,674

226,689,364 240,209,948 456,899,312

603,572 3,944,020 4,547,892
495,584 391,796 887,380
772,786 - 772,786
236,881 - 236,881

- 207,498 207,498

7,770 1,035,738 1,043,508

- 2,598,495 2,698,495

500 - 500

- 940,421 940,421

175,742 - 175,742
1,435,000 - 1,435,000
- 3,415,000 3,415,000
3,450,000 - 3,450,000
450,810 73,500 524,410

- 2,084,001 2,084,001
4272283 - 4,272,283
- 47 551,322 47,551,322
2,367,632 - 2,367,632
195,199 163,382 389,561

- 53,252,798 53,252,796
10,059,677 - 10,058,677
17,042,184 - 17,042,184

41,567,020 115,787,969 157,354,989

134,670,237 93,926,084 228,596,301

2,838,701 6,857,189 9,796,800
47,612,408 23,538,726 71,151,132

$ 185,122,344 § 124,421,979 § 308,544,323

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this siatement.
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Functions/Programs

Frimary government:

Governmental activities:
General government
Pubiic safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Community development
Culiure and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmentat activities

Business-type aciivities:
Water
Wastewater
Electric

Total business-type activities

Totaf primary government

CITY OF MISHAWAKA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Govemment
Charges for Grants and Grants and Govemmentai  Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions _Contribufions Activities Activities Totals
§ 7987985 § 498,317 § 98,005 § 1,004360 §  (6277.213) § - §  {6,277.213)
29,631,615 1,702,518 2,572,664 173,007 {25,182,526) - (25,182,5286)
6,927,174 132,033 - 4,250,217 (2,544 924} - (2,544,924)
1,954,482 2,074,781 - - 120,299 - 120,299
2,191,347 586,681 1,639,020 - 34,354 - 34,354
6,062,941 938,755 101,890 315,548 (4,708,648} - (4,706,648)
627,528 - - - (627,328} - {627,328}
55 362,872 5,933,085 4,411,769 5,834,032 (39,183,986) - (39,183,986)
£,699,816 7,721,105 - 167,104 - 1,188,383 1,188,393
11,641,256 13,047 673 - - - 1,508,417 1,506,417
46,813,781 50,153,710 - - - 335,929 330,929
68,054,853 70,822,488 - 167,104 - 3,034,738 3,034,738
123417725 § 76855573 § 4411758 $ 6,001,136 {39,183,986) 3,034,739 (36,149,247

General revenues:

Property taxes 44,782,236 - 44782 236
Grants and confributions not restricted to specific programs 8,208,595 - 8,206,595
Unrestricted investment eamings 34,289 112,130 146,419
Other 354,814 - 364,814
Transfers (3,578,995) 3,578,855 -
Total general revenues and fransfers 49,798,538 3,691,125 53,480,064
Change in net assets 10,614,953 6,725,864 17,340,817
Net assets - beginning, restated 174,507,391 117,696,115 282,203,506
Net assets - ending $ 185122344 $ 124421579 § 309,544,323

The notes te the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA,
BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNES
December 31, 2011

Local Other
TIF NW Major Moves Governmental
Asseis . Genera/ General Construction Funds Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5753617 $ 20,648,708 $ 4,562477 § 25201487 $ 56,168,280
Recefvables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes 900,847 1,748,030 - 428756 3,077,833
Accounts 529,083 - - 131,898 661,081
Intergovernmental 386,620 - - 1,018,697 1,406,317 ;
Loans - 5,358,754 - 605,737 5,964,491
Assets held for resale - 6,943,837 - - 6,943,837 !
Total assets $ 7,670,167 § 34,689,330 § 4562477 § 27387675 $ 74,219,649
Liabilities and Fund Batances
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie 5 19,873 § - % - $ 484498 5 604,372
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable 418,207 - - 77377 495,584
Contracts payable - 256,695 28,245 486,846 772,788
Shori-term loans payable - - - 236,881 236,881
Energy improvement loan - - - 893,302 893,302
Unearned revenue 500,847 1,748,030 - 428,756 3,077,633
Total liabilifes 1,438,927 2,004,725 29,245 2,607,661 5,080,558
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans receivable - 5,155,651 - 957,633 5,713,284
Assets held for resale - 6,943,837 - - 8,943 837
Restricted - - 4,533,232 13,021,963 47,555,195
Committed - - - 6,673,086 6,673,085
Assigned 17,917 20,595,117 - 4,527,332 25,140,366
Unassigned 6,113,323 - - - 5,113,323
Total fund balances 6,131,240 32,694,605 4,533,232 24 780,014 68,139,091
Totat iiabilities and fund balances $ 7,670,167 $ 34699330 § 4562477 $ 27387675 § 74219649

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Staternent of Net Assets are different because:

Total Fund Balances % - % 68,139,091

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therafore, are not reporied in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 179,800,536
Less accumulated deprediation (33,405,384) 146,195,152

Other jong-term assets are not availabls to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Prepaid expenses 458,018
Deferred charges 105,112 563,128

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain services
io individual funds. The assets and liabilfties of the intema! service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 6,604,737

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

General obligation bonds payable {5,750,000)

TIF bonds payable (5,870,000}

Bond discount . 95,085 B
Accrued interest payable (183,512) :
Compensated absences (647,109} :
Net cther postemployment benefits obligation {10,059,677}

Met pension obligation (17,042,184}  (39,457,3¢7)

Unearned revenue in govemmental fund is susceptibie 1o full accrual on the
entity-wide statements 3,077,633

Net assets of governmental aciivities $ 185,122,344

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Local Cther Total
TIF NW Major Moves  Governmental  Governmental
General General Construction Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 17,107,847 § 21171546 § - 8§ 6922274 § 45201867
Licenses and permits 368,839 - - 58,080 418,629
Intergovernmental 8,206,595 - - 10,245,801 18,452,396
Charges for services 1,542,047 - - 2,649,910 4,191,957
Fines and forfeits £5,098 - - - 55,098
Interest 13,683 9,486 2,916 8,204 34,289
Sale and use of property 24,399 - - 251,842 276,241
Gifts and donations - - - 120,587 120,587
Other 354,814 98,722 - 771,851 1,225 387
Total revenues 27,664,122 21,279,854 2,918 21,028,558 59,976,451
Expenditures:
CGurrent:
General govemnment 5,727,816 - - 157,261 5,885,077
Public safety 24,007,758 - 3,176,388 27,184,126
Highways and streets 272,484 - - 3,018,210 3,290,704
Sanitation - - - 1,554,482 1,954,482
Culture and recreation - - - 3,146,304 3,146,304
Community development - - - 2,204,477 2,204 477
Debt service: 2
Principal - - - 4,609,254 4,908,254 :
Interest - - - 626,002 626,002 ~
Capital cutlay:
General govemment - 648,589 - 1,183,761 1,842,350
Public safety - - - 635,780 635,780
Highways and streets - 7,856,118 324,703 1,341,434 9,622,258
Culture and recreation - 1,406,077 - 692,980 2,099,067
Community devetopment - 13,542 - 16,068 29,610
Total expenditures 30,008,068 10,024,327 324,703 23,072,391 63,428,489
Excess {deficiency} of revenues
over {under) expenditures (2,343,846) 11,255,527 (321,787) (2,042,832) 6,546,962
COther financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 2,921,072 - - 3,682,244 6,613,316
Transfers out - (6,721,244) - {334,000 (7,052 244)
Total other financing sources and uses 2,921,072 5,721,244) - 3,361,244 (438,928)
Net change in fund balances 577,126 4,534,283 (321,787) 1,318,412 6,108,034
Fund balances - beginning 5 554,114 28,160,322 4,855 019 234681 602 62,031,067
Fund balances - ending $ 6,131,240 § 32694605 § 4,533,232 $ 24780014 $ 68,139,09M

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
RECCONCILIATION GF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ - § 6,108,034
Governmental funds report capital cufiays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital cutlays exceeded depreciation in the current peried.

Expendiures for capital assets 7 489,158
Less current year depreciation expense (5,324,135)
Loss on dispesal of assets (34.173) 2,130,850

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not previde current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. (419,631)

The issuance of iong-term debt {e.g., bonds, leases) provide current financial resources to govern-
mental funds, whiie the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
govemnmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar iterns when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amoertized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related Hems.

Principal debt payments 4,909,254 4,900 254

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the vse of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Amortization of current year bond discount (43,581)

Amortization of current year bond issuance cost (36,241

Accrued interest 78,496

Prepaid expenses 35,931

Change in compensated absences 176,505

Change in net other postemployment benefits obligation {2,610,940)

Change in net pension cbligation 224 093 (2,175,737}

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue {expense} of the intemal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. 62,183

Change in net assets of governmental activities {Statement of Activities) $ 10,614,953

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
PROFRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2011

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Warter \Wastewater Eleclric Internal
Utiity Utility Uiility Totaly Service Fund
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 693,874 § 1,318,834 § 3,550,129 § 6562837 § 5317415
Interest recetvable - 8271 - 8,271 -
Accounts receivable {net of allowance) 375,002 779,780 3,118,705 4,270,467 -
Accounts receivable - other (nat of allowance) 112,243 75 94,868 207,188 -
interfund receivables:

Interfund services provided and used - - 72,540 72,540 -
Intergovemnmertal ioan - - - - 1,287,322
Ihveriories 205,840 - 2,399,944 2,605,784 -
Prepaid items 91,602 127383 172,332 391,217 -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Construction - 22,176,378 - 22.176,378 -

Customer deposits 417,236 2,685 2,267,494 2,687,416 -

Revenue bond covenant accounts 1,335,296 4,867 893 754,000 6,957,189 -

Repalr account 1,841,544 13,016 604 71,590 14,929 738 -

Total current assets 6,072,537 42,2897 883 12,488,602 60,868,022 5,604,737

Nonecurrent assefs:
Net pension assat 17,168 17,168 34,337 68,674 - "
Deferred charges 83,293 403 107 805,587 1,281,887 -

Tetal noncurrent assets: 100,461 420,278 838,924 1,360,861 -
Capiial assefs:

Land and construction in progress 679,000 17,229,863 307,732 18,216,595 -

Other capital assets (net of

accumutated depreciation) 41,892,600 84 599,341 33,838,289 160,230,230 -

Total capital assets 42,371,600 101820204 34,248 021 178,446,825 -

Total noncurrent assets 42,454,893 102,232,311 35,051,608 179,738,812 -

Total assets 48,544, 508 144,547,363 47,584,547 240,676,508 5,604,737
Ligbilities
Current fabilities: :

Accounts payable 167,436 £3.808 3,722,776 3,944,020 -

Accrued payrofi and withholdings payable 113,906 117,211 160,679 391,796 -

Interfund payables:

Interfund services provided and used 36,270 36,270 - 72,540 -
Taxes payable 4,487 - 203,031 207498 -
Accrued interest payable 2115 1,033,623 - 1,035,738 -
Compensated sbsences 12,100 10,000 51,400 73,500 -
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits 428,286 2,715 2,267,494 2,698,495 -

Contract payable - 440,421 - 940,421 -

Capital lease obligations - 48 580 - 48,580 -

Notes and ioans payable 1,215,580 808,465 9,860 2,133,928 -

Revenue bonds payable 315,000 3,100,000 - 3,415,000 -

Total current iiabilites 2,295 160 6,251,083 6,415,260 14,861,513 -

Nongurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 64,386 58,659 70,337 193,382 -
Capital lease obligations - 145,740 - 145,740 -
Notes and loans payabie 13,421,738 39,851,182 29642 53,402 572 -
Revenue bonds payable {net of unamortized
discounts and deferred amount on refunding} 2653 089 44,898,233 - 47,551,322 -
Tatal noncurrent liabilities 16,139,213 85,053,824 9,979 101,283,016 -
Total abiliies 18,434,373 91,304,917 6,615,238 116,254,529 -
Nef Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 24,768,193 34,853 372 34,206,459 93,926,064 -
Restricted for debt service 1,335,296 4,867 893 754,000 6,857,189 -
' Unrestricted 4,008,736 13,421,131 6,108,809 23,538726 6,604,737
Total net assets $ 30,110,226 $ 53242446 § 41,060,308 §124421679 § 6,504,737

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Operating revenues:
Unmetered water revenue
Metered water revenue:
Residential
Commercial
Public street and highway lighting
Fire protection revenue
Penalties
Employeefemployer contributions
Measured revenue:
Residential
Commercial
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply and expense - operations and maintenance
Transmission and distribution
Treatment and disposal expense - operations and maintenance
Custorner accounts
Administration and general
Insurance claims and premiums
Purchased power
Sewer - operation and maintenance
Prefreatment - operation and malntenance
Chemicals
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income {}oss)

Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Interest and investment revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Interest expense
Amortization expense
Loss on disposal of assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital coptributions - net
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning, restated

Tota! net assets - ending

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Electric internal
Utility Utility Utllity Totals Service Fund
k3 2630 % - - 8 2690 % -
4,928,179 - 17,243,760 22,171,938 -
1,276,994 - 31,620,616 32,897,610 -
- - 369,693 369,693 -
1,160,442 - - 1,160,442 -
40,114 187,784 218,348 447 247 -
- - - - 8,927,950
- 7,510,320 - 7,510,320 -
- 5,076,485 - 5,076,485 -
194,548 273,084 658,267 1,165,900 30,993
7,602,968 13,047 673 50,151,685 70,802,326 8,958,943
1,319,189 1,445,106 - 2,764,295 -
1,372,587 - 3,895,598 5,268,195 -
860,520 555,355 - 1,215,875 -
301618 706 803,001 1,105,325 -
873,793 1,638,452 2,960,851 5,473,126 -
- - - - 8,905,473
- - 39,770,921 39,770,921 -
- 1,225,850 - 1,225,850 -
- 96,973 - 96,973 -
- 206,635 - 206,635 -
1,459,011 4,530,010 2,325,096 8,314,117 -
5,886,728 9,699,117 49,755,467 65 441,312 8,905,473
1,616,240 3,348,556 396,218 5,361,014 53,470
3,477 104,462 4,181 112,130 8,713
118,137 - 2,025 120,162 -
(598,817} (1,814,641} (1,103) (2,414,561} -
(32,397} {27,498) (27,358) (87,253) -
(81,874} - (28,853) {(111,727) -
(581,474) (1,737.677) (52,098) {2,381,249) 8,713
1,024,766 1,610,879 344,120 2,879,765 62,183
392,046 2,915,125 - 3,307,171 -
- 3,360,000 - 3,360,000 -
{622,714y (1.057.823)  {1,240,635) {2,921,072) -
794,008 6,828,181 (896,415) 6,725,854 682,183
29,315,127 456,414,265 41,965,723 117,696,115 6,542 554
$ 30,110,225 § 53242446 § 41,069,308 § 124,421,978 $ 6,604,737

The notes fo the financial staterents are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Enterprise Funds

Water Wastowater Electric Internal
Utility Utility Uttty Totals Service Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users $ 7613530 % 12797579 § 50,742560 S 71,153,669 § -

Receipts from interfund services provided - - - - 9,280,773

Payments to suppliers (2,037,112) (2,251,373}  {45523,783) (49,822,268) -

Payments to employees (2,571,229) (3.023,554) {4,238,635) (9,833,418) -

Payments for interfund services used - - - - (8,148,574)

Cther receipts (payments) 118,137 - 2,025 120,162 -

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,125,326 7,512,652 982,167 11,618,145 131,199
Cash flows from noncapital financing activitiss:

Interfund lcans - - B - -

Transfer from other funds - 3,360,600 - 3,360,000 -

Transfer to other funds (622.714) (1,057,823} {1,244,535) {2,021,072) -

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (622,714} 2,302,177 {1,240,535) 438,928 -
Cash fiows from capital and related financing activities:

Issue costs paid - {19,972) - {19,972) -

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (563,565) (7,887,028) {1,113,604) (9,374,198} -

Principal paid on bonds (305,000) (1,915,000} - (2,220,000) -

Principal paid on capital leases - {48,580) - {(48,580) -

Principal paid on loans {1,185,579) (295,464) (9,881) (2,190,924) -

Interest paid on bonds (142,612) (1,375,204) - (1,517,816} -

Interest paid on capital leases - {3,418} - {3,418) -

Interest paid on loans (451,178) (1,392,180} (1,103} {1,844,461) -

Net cash provided {used) by capital and related financing activities (2,647,934)  (13,446,847) (1,124 588) {17,219,369) B
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 3,498 96,246 4,191 103,835 8713
Net increase (decrease;) in cash and cash equivalents (143,824) (3,535,772} (1,378,765) (5,058,361) 136,912
Cash and cash eguivalents, January 1

{Including $2,538,660, $7,3758,580, $11,049,803, and $29,079,400 for the

sustomer deposits, revenue bond covenant account, repair account, and

capital cutlay account, respectively, reported in restricted accounts)

5431774 44,818,166 8,021,978 58,371,918 5177503

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31
{Including $2,687,415, $6,957,189, $14,929,738, and $22,176,378 for the
customer deposits, revenue bond covenant account, repair account, and
capital outiay account, respectively, reported in restricted accounts)

$_ 5287950 % 41382394 § 6543213

§ 53313557 § 5317415

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

{Continued)
Enterprise Funds
Water Wastewater Electric internal
Utility Utility Utility Totals Service Fund
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating incorme {oss) $ 1616240 § 3348556 B 306,218 § 5361014 § 53,470
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,459,011 4,530,010 2,325,096 8,314,117 -
Nonoperafing revenue 118,137 - © 2,025 120,162 -
(increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 10,562 (250,094) 590,877 351,345 -
Interfund services provided or used - - (23,635) (23,635) -
Intergovernmental loans - - - - 78,930
Inventories (134,872) - {1,396,495) {1.531,167) -
Prepaid items (1,809) (23,270) (56,538) (81,617) -
increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Customer deposits 19,767 330 130,473 150,570 -
Accounts payable (15,541) (134,753) (983,511) (1,133,805) (1,201}
Accrued payrolt and withholdings payable 69,605 57,448 80,910 217,963 -
Interfund payabies 11,817 11,817 - 23,634 -
Taxes payables (1,423) - (43,185} (44,608) -
Estimate for unfiled claims - - - - -
Canftracts payable - 64 - 64 -
Compensated absences payable 2,105 3,018 10,877 16,000 -
Net pension obligation payable (30,473) {30,474) (60,945) (121,892) -
Total adjustments 1,507,086 4,164,096 555,949 6,257,131 77,728
Net cash provided {used) by operating activities $ 3,123,326 $§ 7,512652 § 982,167 $ 11,818,145 % 131,192
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Accreted value on capital appreciation bonds % - 8 270,122 § - 8§ 270122 & -
Work in progress on account - 840,421 - 940,421 -
Work in progress financed through debt (SRF loan} - 902,470 - 902,470 -
Transfer of work In progress o depreciated capital assets - 8,112,045 - 8,119,045 -
Capitaiized interest added to capital assets - 1,580,320 - 1,590,320 -
Capital lease added to capital assets - 242,900 - 242,900 -
Material and supply inventory converted fo capital iiems 296,149 - 1,272,029 1,568,178 -
Centributed capital assets from government 224,942 2,982,351 - 3,217,293 -
Contributed capital assets fo government - 77,226 - 77,226 -
Purchase/disposal of capital assets on account 9,059 6,880 (13,761) 2,178 -
Disposal of capital assets 133,296 1,871 203,414 338,581 -
Reclassified capital assets; from buildings to improvements
cther than buildings, machinery and equipment, and
transportation in the amounts of $312,984, $1,280,150, and
22,024, respectively. - 1,628,158 - 1,625,158 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Decemnber 31, 2011

Pension
Trust Agency
Assets Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1636843 § 84,179
Receivables:
Interest and dividends 14,825 -
Investments at fair value:
Government spensored enterprise 252,703 -
Municipal bonds 1,260,647 -
Mutual funds 11,692,664 -
Total investments 13,206,014 -
Total assets 14,857,682 3% 84,179
Liabilities
Current liabiiiiies:
Accounts payable - % 78,928
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable - 5,251
Total liabiiities - 3 84,179
Net Assets
Held in trust for;
Employees' pension benefits and other purposes 14,857,682
Total net assets $ 14,857.682

The nofes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWARKA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Pension
Trust
Additions Funds
Contribufions:
Cn behaif $ 4,013,956
Employer 598,801
Total contributions 4612757
Investment income {joss):
Net decrease in fair value of investments (430,618)
interest 359 165
Total investment income {joss}) (71,453}
Less investment expense:
investment activity expense 33,776
Net investment income (loss) (105,228)
Total additions 4,507,528
Beductions
Benefits 4,654,521
Administrative expense 21,129
Total deductions 4,675,650
Changes in net assets (168,122)
Net assets - beginning 15,025,804
Net assets - ending 5 14,857 682

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Mishawaka (primary government) was established under the laws of the State of Indiana.
The primary government operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides the
following services: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, health, welfare and social
services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, generat administrative
services, electric, water, wastewater, and urban redevelopment and housing.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the primary government and its
significant component units.

Blended Component Unit

The Mishawaka Bond Bank is a significant blended component unit of the primary government. The
primary government appoints a voting majority of the Mishawaka Bond Bank's Board and a financial
benefitburden relationship exists between the primary government and the Mishawaka Bond Bank.
Although it is legally separate from the primary government, the Mishawaka Bond Bank is reported as
if it were a part of the primary government because it provides services entirely or almost entirely to
the primary government.

Related Organizations

The primary government's officials are also responsible for appointing the voting majority of the
boards of other organizations, but the primary government's accountability for these organizations
does not extend beyond making the appointments. The primary government appoints the voting
majority of the School City of Mishawaka and the Mishawaka Housing Authority.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

Government-wide financial statements {i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who pur-
chase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eli-
gibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financiat statements are reported using the current financial resources meas-
urement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
coliectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current pericd.
For this purpose, the primary government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, claims and judgments, are recorded only when pay-
ment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when the primary government receives cash.

The primary government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It accounts for ali financial resources of the gen-
eral government, except those reguired to be accounted for in another fund.

The TIF NW general fund accounts for expenditures made for public improvement projects in the
Northwest (NW) property tax incremental financing district. Financing is provided by incremental
taxes collected on property iocated in this district. Amounts needed for bond retirement are
transferred annually to the proper debt service fund.

The local major moves construction fund accounts for expenditures made for construction of
highways, roads, and bridges. Financing was provided by a distribution from the proceeds of the
75 year lease of the State's toll road.

The primary government reports the following major enterprise funds:

The water utility fund accounts for the operation of the primary government's water distribution
system.

The wastewater utility fund accounts for the operation of the primary government's wastewater
treatment plant, pumping stations, and collection systems.

The electric utility fund accounts for the operation of the primary government's electric distribution
system.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

Additionally, the primary government reporis the following fund types:

The internal service funds account for employee medical coverage provided to other
depariments on a cost-reimbursement basis and for capitai financing activities through a local
bond bank.

The pension trust funds account for the activities of the 1925 police, 1937 fire, and utility pension
funds which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments.

Agency funds account for assets held by the primary government as an agent for administrative
costs of the Redevelopment Department and a special court judgment.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, gen-
erally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subseguent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The primary government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmeni-wide finan-
cial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the water, wastewater, and electric functions and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goads,
services or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as pro-
gram revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all faxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enter-
prise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The primary government's cash and cash equivalents are considered fo be cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

State statute (IC 5-13-9) authorizes the primary government to invest in securities, including but
not limited to, federal government securities, repurchase agreements, and certain money market
mutual funds. Certain other statutory restrictions apply to all investments made by local govern-
mental units.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

Nonparticipating certificates of deposit, demand deposits and similar nonparticipating negotiable
instruments that are not reported as cash and cash equivalents are reported as investments at
cost.

Debt securities are reported at fair value. Debt securities are defined as securities backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States Treasury or fully insured or guaranteed by the United
States or any United States government agency.

Open-end mutual funds are reported at fair value.

Mcney market investments that mature within one year or iess at the date of their acquisition are
reported at amortized cost. There are no material differences between amortized cost and fair
value. Other money market investments are reported at fair value.

Investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is reported as revenue in
the operating statement.

interfund Transactions and Balances

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "interfund receivables/payables” (i.e., the current and
noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as "interfund services provided/used." Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide finan-
cial statements as “"internal balances."

Property Taxes

Normally, property taxes levied are collected by the County Treasurer and are disiributed to the
primary government in June and in December. State statute (IC 6-1.1-17-16) requires the
indiana Department of Local Government Finance to establish property tax rates and levies by
February 15. These rates were based upon the preceding year's March 1 (lien date) assessed
valuations adjusted for various tax credits. Taxable property is assessed at 100 percent of the
true tax value (determined in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Indiana
Department of Local Government Finance). Taxes may be paid in two equal instaliments that
become delinguent if not paid by May 10 and November 10, respectively. Delinquent property
taxes outstanding at year end for governmental, net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, are
recorded as a receivable with an offset to unearned revenue since the amounts are not con-
sidered available.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

All inventories are valued at cost using the first inffirst out {(FIFO) method. Inventeries of govern-
mental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to fuiure accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5. Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the primary government's general obligation, TIF and revenue bonds, as well
as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the
statement of net assets balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

None of the restricted net assets are restricted due to enabling legislation.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items}, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type aclivities column in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or deflated
current replacement cost. Contributed or donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at
the time received.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of capital assets
reported in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation  Estimated

Threshold Method Useful Life

Buildings and improvements $ 100,000 Straightine 20-50
Equipment 5,000 Straight-line 3-15
Roads - collector and residential 3,000,000 Straight-line 10-35
Water collection systems 5,000 Straight-line 5-50
Wastewater distribution and

collection systems 5,000 Straight-line 4-50
Electric distribution systems 5,000 Straight-line 5-50

For depreciated assets, the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense
incurred by the City in i{s business-type activities during the current year was $4,004,881. Ofthe
amount, $1,590,320 was included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in con-
nection with wastewater facilities construction project.

7. Compensated Absences

a. Flexible Time —~ primary government employees earn flexible time off at the rate of one-half
day per month and may accumulate to a maximum of 25 days. The primary government ;
may buy back flexible time-off days from any employee up to a maximum of & flexible time- |
off days per year. Flexible time-off is paid to employees upon termination. ;
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

b. Vacation Leave — non-Union primary government employees eamn vacation leave at rates
from 10 days to 25 days per year based upon the number of years of service. Union Utility
employees earn vacation leave at rates from & to 30 days per year based upon the number
of years of service, plus 1 day for each year of service after 30 years. Vacation leave does
not accumulate from year to year.

c. Compensatory Leave — Police officers, fire fighters and emergency medical technicians have
accumulated overtime-compensatory leave for a variety of reasons.

Flexible time-off and compensatory leave is accrued when incurred and reported as a liability in
the Statement of Net Assets and in the proprietary fund statements. No liability is recognized in
the governmental fund statements as no amounts were due and payable at year-end for termii-
nated employees.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the ap-
plicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges
and amortized over the term of the related debt.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and dis-
counis, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current peried. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reporied
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from actual debt proceeds received, are reported
as debt service expenditures.

Encumbrances

Contracts and purchasing commitments are reported as encumbrances when the contract or
purchase order is executed. When the terms of the purchase order or contract have been ful-
filled and payment to the contracting party is due, the encumbrance is liquidated and the liability
and expenditure are recorded. Encumbrances remaining at fiscal year-end are reported within
the restricted, committed or assigned fund balances of the governmental funds. The foliowing
shows encumbrances at December 31, 2011:

Amount
General $ 17,917
Local Major Moves Construction 919,440
Other Governmental Funds 4,368,748

Total $ 5,308,105
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CITY CF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

10. Fund Balances

The fund balance amounts for governmental funds have heen reclassified in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 54 — "Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions.”
Fund balances are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent. As a result, amounts previously reported as reserved and
unreserved are now reported as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned.
A brief description of each category is as follows:

Nonspendable fund balances include items that cannof be spent. This includes activity that
is not in a spendable form (long-term portions of loans, property held for resale) and activity
that is legally or contractually required to remain intact, such as principal balances in a per-
manent fund.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an
externat party such as a grantor or creditor or imposed by law through constitutionat provi-
sions or enabling legislation,

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by a formal action by the City Council, the City’s highest level of decision-making
authority. This formal action is the passage of an ordinance by the Council specifying the
purposes for which the funds can be used, The same type of formal action is necessary to
remove or change the specified use.

Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used
for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For the governmental fund
types other than the General Fund, this is the residual amounf within the fund that is not
restricted or committed.

The unassigned fund balance is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the
four categories above. Only the General Fund may report a positive unassigned fund bal-
ance whereas, other governmental funds may need to report a negative unassigned fund
balance if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes.

When both restricted and unrestricted amounis are available for use, generally it is the City’s policy to
use restricted amounts first, with unrestricied resources ufilized as needed. In the case of unre-
stricted resources, it is generally the City's policy to use committed amounts first, followed by
assigned amounts, then unassigned amounts as needed.

The detail of the fund balance classifications of the governmental funds for the year ended December
31, 2011, is as follows:
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Major Capital
Project Funds
Local Other Total
General T NW Major Mowves  Gowernmental Gowernmental
Fund General Construction Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans recejvable $ - % 5155851 & - 5% 557633 § 5,713,284
Assets held for resale - 6,543,837 - - 6,943,837
Total nanspendabie - 12,099,488 - 557,833 12,657,121
Restricted:
General government - _ . 1,447,304 1.447.394
Public safety - - - 2,947,997 2,047,987
Highways and streets - - 4,533,232 4,067,380 8,600,622
Culture and recreation - - - 1,608,387 1,608,387 )
Community development - - - 196,559 196,559 g
Debt sendice - - - 2,754,238 2,754,236 f
Total restricted - - 4,533,232 13,021,963 17,655,195
Committed:
General govemment - - - 2,846,400 2,846,400
Public safety - - - 833,837 833,837
Highways and streets - - - 2,408,500 2,409,500
Culture and recreation - - - 583,349 583,349
Total committed - - - 6,673,086 6,673,086
Assignead:
General government 17,917 - - 57,936 75,853
Public safety - - - 24,846 24 846
Highways and streets - 16,617,924 - 3,780,523 20,398,447
Sanitation - - - 368,399 398,349
Cuiture and recreation - - - 265,628 265,628
Community dewvelopment - 3,977,193 - - 3,977,193
Total assigned 17,017 20,595,117 - 4,527,332 25,140,366
Unassigned 6,113,323 - - - 5,113,323
Tatal fund balance $ 6,131,240 $ 32,654,605 § 4,533,232 § 24,780,014 § 68,139,001

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on the cash basis which is not consistent with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Annual budgets are adopted for the following governmental funds:
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

General

Major governmental funds:
Capital projects fund — Local Major Moves Construction

Nonmajor governmental funds:
Special revenue funds — Motor Vehicle Highway, Local Road and Street, Park and
Recreation, Public Safety, Rainy Day, Rainy Day Public Safety, Law Enforcement
Continuing Education, Park Nonreverting Operating

Debt service fund — Municipal Bond No. 1

Capital projects funds — Cumulative Buiiding and Fire Fighting Equipment, Cumulative
Capital Improvement, Cumulative Sewer, Cumulative Capital Development, Energy
Saving Improvements, CEDIT

On or before September 30, the City Controller submits to the Common Council a proposed operating
budget for the year commencing the following January 1. Prior to adoption, the budget is advertised and
public hearings are conducted by the Common Council to obtain taxpayer comments. In October of each
year, the Common Council through the passage of an ordinance approves the budget for the next year.
Copies of the budget ordinance and the advertisement for funds for which property taxes are levied or
highway use taxes are received are sent to the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. The
budget becomes legally enacted after the City Controller receives approval of the Indiana Department of
Local Government Finance. '

The primary governmenf's management cannot transfer budgeted appropriations between object
classifications of a budget without approval of the Common Council. The Indiana Department of Local
Government Finance must approve any revisions to the appropriations for any fund or any department of
the General Fund. The legal level of budgetary control is by object and department within the fund for the
General Fund and by object within the fund for all other budgeted funds.

Expenditures did not exceed appropriations for any funds or any departments within the General Fund,
which required legally, approved budgets.

Detailed Notes on All Funds
A. Deposits and Investments
1. Deposits

Custodiai credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. Indiana Code 5-13-8-1 allows a political subdivision of the State of Indiana
to deposit public funds in a financial institution only if the financial institution is a depository
eligible to receive state funds and has a principal office or branch that qualifies to receive public
funds of the political subdivision. The primary government does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2011, the primary government had deposit balances in the
amount of $116,848,754. Of this amount, the following was exposed to custodial credit risk:
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Amount
Uninsured deposits collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust
department or agent, but not in the depositor-
government's name % 24 873

Total 5 24,673

The remaining bank balances were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the
Public Deposit Insurance Fund, which covers all public funds held in approved depositories.

Investments

Authorization for investment activity is stated in Indiana Code 5-13. The Utilities Pension Fund
Board of Trustees has established an investment policy for the Utility's Retirement Plan. This
investment policy outlines parameters for investment activity for the pension plan. As of
December 31, 2011, the City's Utility Pension -und had the following investments:

Primary Government:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Market Less More
Type Value Than 1 1-2 Than 2

Utility Pension Fund:

Gowemment sponsored enterprises  $ 252,703 § 0 $ - $ 252693
Municipal bonds 1,260,647 - - 1,260,647
Mutual funds 11,692,664 11,692,664 - -
Totals $ 13,206,014 $11,692,674 $ - § 1,513,340

Statutory Authorization for Investmenis

Indiana Code 5-13-9 authorizes the primary government to invest in securities backed by the full
faith and credit of the United Staies Treasury or fully guaranteed by the United States of America
and issued by the United States Treasury, a federal agency, a federal instrumentality, or a
federal government sponsored enterprise. Indiana Code also authorizes the primary government
to invest in securities fully guaranteed and issued by a federal agency, a federal instrumentality,
or a federal government sponsored enterprise. These investments are required by statute to
have a stated final maturity of not mere than two years.

Indiana Code also provides for investment in money market mutual funds that are in the form of
securities of, or interest in, an open-end, no-load, management-type investment company or
investment trust registered under the provision of the federal Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended. Investments in money market mutual funds may not exceed 50 percent of the
funds held by the primary government and available for investment. The portfolio of an invest-
ment company or investment trust used must be limited to direct obligations of the United States
of America, obligations issued by a federal agency, a federal instrumentality, or a federal govern-
ment sponsored enterprise or repurchase agreements fully collateralized by direct obligations of
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the United States of America or obligations issued by a federal agency, a federal instrumentality,
or afederal government sponsored enterprise. The form of securities of, or interest in, an invest-
ment company or investment trust must be rated as AAA, or its equivalent by Standard and
Poor's Corporation or its successor or Aag, or its equivalent, by Moocdy's Investors Service, Inc.,
or its successor. The form of securities in an investment company or investment trust should
have a stated final maturity of one day.

Additionally, the primary government may enter into repurchase agreements with depositories
designated by the State Board of Finance as depositories for siate deposits involving the primary
government's purchase and guaranteed resale of any interest-bearing obligations issued or fully
insured or guaranteed by the United States of America, a United States of America government
agency, an instrumentality of the United States of America, or a federal government sponscred
enterprise. The repurchase agreement is considered to have a stated final maturity of one day.
This agreement must be fully collateralized by interesi-bearing obligations as determined by their
current market value,

The Utility Pension Plan is not subject to the same investment laws as the City. The investment
policy for the Utility Pension Plan was adopted by the Board on August 27, 1999. Authorized
investments include commen or preferred stocks, bonds, debentures, notes or cther evidences of
indebtedness or ownership, or other securities, in any corporation, mutual investment fund, in-
vestment company, association or business trust; bonds or other obligation or securities issued
by the United States of America or any state or governmental subdivision or instrumeniality
thereof, and real and personal property of all kinds, including leaseholds on improved and unim-
proved real estate.

Investment Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-
party to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment ar col-
lateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Utility’s Pension Plan does
not have a formal investment palicy for custodial credit risk for investments.

At Decemnber 31, 2011, the following investments held by the Utility's Pension Plan were exposed
to custodial credit risks because they are uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the
counterparty, or the counterparty's trust department or agent, but not in the government's name:

Primary Government:

Not in the
Investment Gowernment's
Type Name

Gowernment sponsored enterprises § 252,703

Municipal bonds 1,260,647
Mutual funds 11,692,664

Total $ 13,208,014
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Inferest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City must foliow state statute and limit the stated final maturities of the invest-
ments to no more than two years. The Utility's Pension Plan does not have a formal investment
policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obliga-
tions. The Utility's Pension Plan does not have a formal investment policy for credit risk for
investments. The distribution of secunties with credit ratings is summarized below.

Primary Government:

City's Investments

Standard & Govwermnment
Poors Moody's Sponsored Municipai Mutual
Rating Rating Enterprise Bonds Funds
AAA Aaa $ 252,703 $ 579,965 § -
AA Aa - 572,235 -
A A - 108,447 -
Unrated Unrated - - 11,692,664
Totals $ 252,703 $ 1,260,647 $ 11,692,684

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's
investment in a single issuer. The Utility Pension Plan does not have a policy in regards {o
concentration of credit risk. United States of America government and United States of America
governmental agency securities are exempt from this policy requirement.

The Utility Pension Plan held the following investments that were exposed fo concentration of
credit risk:

lasuer 2011
Russell Ilvestment Grade Bond $ 1,681,872
Vanguard Short-Term Federal 677,080
FMI Large Cap 689,860
Russell International Dev Mkts 1,263,951
Vanguard Large Cap Index Signal 1,119,068

Total $ 5,431,831
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B. Loans Receivables

The following receivable accounts have timing and credit charactenstics different from typical

accounis receivable.

Fund Receivable Noncurrent
Governmental funds:
Maijor fund:
TIF NW General $ 5358754 $ 5,155,651
Special revenue funds:
Industrial Development 3,719 -
Community Dewvelopment 602,018 557,833
Total governmental funds $ 50664491 % 5,713,284
Proprietary fund;
Internal senice fund.
Mishawaka Bond Bank $ 1,287,322 & 965,491

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2011, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Primary Government Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activity:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 12,648,166 % 36,100 % - % 12,684,266
Construction in progress 42 616,756 5,400,287 5,660,661 42 356,492
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 55,264,922 5,436,497 5,660,661 55,040,758
Capital assets, being depraciated:
Buildings 14,802,032 50,000 - 14,952,032
Improvements other than buildings 19,498,372 118,833 - 19,617,305
Machinery and equipment 22,669,920 2,272,975 650,167 24,282 728
Infrastructure being depreciated 60,426,299 5,271,414 - 65,697,713
Totals 117,496,623 7,713,322 650,167 124,559,778
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Beginning Ending
Primary Gavemment Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Govemnmental activity (continued):
Capital assets, being depreciated (continued):
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 5,908,453 282,398 - 6,191,851
Improvements other than buildings 5,176,723 718,361 - 5,885,084
Machinery and equipment 12,542,043 2,473,494 615,954 14,389,543
Infrastructure being depreciated 5,06%,024 1,849 882 - 6,918,208
Totals 28,697,243 5,324 135 615,994 33,405,384
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 88,759,380 2,389,187 34,173 91,154,384

Total governmental activity capital assets, net $ 144,064,302 $ 7,825684 % 5,694,834 3 146,195,152

Business+type activity:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 1505150 % 3,110 % - $ 1,508,260
Construction in progress 19,183,022 5,721,584 8,196,271 16,708,335
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,688,172 5,724,654 8,156,271 18,216,595

Capital assets, being depreciated: *

Buildings 52,763,982 148,008 1,625,158 51,286,833
Improvements other than buildings 128,705,349 16,146,223 322,949 144,528,623
Machinery and equipment 45,345,050 1,770,088 15,632 47,099,506
Transportation 3,355,617 343,275 - 3,688,882
Totais 230,169,988 18,407,595 1,863,739 246,613,854

Less accumulated depreciation for: *

Buildings 12,139,821 1,089,454 - 13,229,315
Improvements other than buildings 38,904,472 3,474,463 212,770 42 166,165
Machinery and equipment 24 228,807 3,511,306 1,925 27,738,188
Transportation 3,011,103 238,854 - 3,249,957
Totals - restated 78,284,203 8,314,117 214,695 86,383,625

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 151,885,795 10,083,478 1,749,044 160,230,229

Total business-type activity capital assets, net $§ 172,673,967 § 15,818,172 $ 9,845315 § 178,446,824

*Some assets and the associated depreciation were reclassified by type.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government % 229,198
Public safety 2,031,867
Highways and sireets 2,138,611
Culture and recreation 822,127
Community dewelopment 2,202

Total depreciation expense - gowernmental activities $ 5,324,135

Business-type activities:

Water $ 1,459,011
Wastewater 4,530,010
Electric 2,325,096

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 8,314,117

D. Construction Commitmenis
Construction work in progress is composed of the following:
Expended to

December 31,
Project 2011 Committed

Gowemmental activities:

Main Street projects $ 29,359,901 § 1,079,483
Fire Station 449 184 3,484,166
Church/Union 2,085,222 1,183,775
Douglas Road Medical Park 1,480,010 393,556
Gther street projects 3,080,644 119,355
Riverfront Park 3,880,903 100,649
Riverwalk 803,760 86,372
Other park projects 1,206,868 50,000

Totals - governmental activities $ 42,356,492 § 6,497,356

Business-type activties:
Wastewater Uhility:

Mifburn improvements $ 7.8456080 $ 1,194,227
Treatment plant expansion 2,886,068 2,627,090
~ Northwest trunk sewer rehab 958,695 278,401
Juday creek force main 3,870,638 2,957,666
Other projects (4) 1,045,943 533,348

Totals - business-type actiities $ 16,708,335 §$ 7,590,732
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E. Interfund Balances and Activity
1. Interfund Receivables and Payables

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Interfund Receivable interfund Payable

Nonmajor
Water Wastewater Gowermmental Totals

Business-type activities:
Electric $ 36,270 % 36,270 $ -3 72,540

Totals 5 36,270 % 36,270 % - % 72,540

interfund balances resulied from the time lag between the dates that (1) Interfund loans are

repaid, (2) Interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (3)

transactions are recorded in the accounting system and {4) payments between funds are made.
2. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers at December 31, 2011, were as follows:

Transfer To

General Nonmajor Wastewater
Transfer From Fund Gowermmentail Utility Totals

Governmental:

TIF NW General Fund $ - % 3,361,244 $ 3,380,000 § 6,721,244

Nonmajor Governmental - 331,000 - 331,000
Business-type:

Water Utility 622,714 - - 622714

Wastewater Utility 1,057,823 - - 1,057,823

Electric Utility 1,240,535 - - 1,240,535
Totals $ 2,921,072 $§ 3692244 § 3,360,000 $ 9,973,318

The primary government typically uses transfers to fund ongoing operating subsidies.
F. Leases

Capital Leases

The primary government has entered into a capital lease for a sewer inspection system. Future
minimum lease payments and present values of the net minimum lease payments under these capital
leases as of December 31, 2011, are as foliows:
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Business-Type
Activities

2012 $ 52,738
2013 51,699
2014 50,659
2015 43,620
Totat minimum lease payments 204,716
Less amount representing interest 10,3956

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 194,320

Assets acquired through capital leases still in effect are as follows:

Business-Type
Activities

Machinery and equipment § 242,900
Accumulated depreciation (48,580)

Total $ 194,320

Short-Term Liabiiities

Revolving Line of Credit:

The primary government uses a revolving line of credit to finance the first time home buyers
program and the Neighborhood Stabilization Program which is a reimbursement grant program.

Short-term debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2011, was as foliows:

Beginning Issued/ Redeemed Ending
Balance Draws Repayments Balance

Line of credit 3 182,441 % 1,127,808 $ 1,073,368 3 236,881

Long-Term Liabilities

1. General Obligation Bonds

The primary government issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities.
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General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the primary
government. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at year end, including the amounts
of unameortized discount, are as follows:

Less:
interest Balance at Due Within  Unamortized  Due in More

Purpose Rates December 31 One Year Discount  Than One Year
$2,745,000 2004 Refunding of 1993
police station bonds due in
installments of $120,000 to $245,000
plus intarest through February 1, 2014 3% % 770,000 $ 300,000 3 5418 5 464,582
$5,000,300 2005 Commurkcation
equipment bonds due in instaliments of
$155,000 fo $300,000 plus interest
thirough February 1, 2016 3.5% to 4% 2,505,000 515,000 10,404 1,978,598
$3,000,060 2007 Communication
eguipment bonds due in installments of
$55,000 to $225,000 plus interest
through February 1, 2016 3.9% to 4% 1,870,000 385,000 24,751 1,460,249
$4,550,000 2006 Park and recreation
bonds due in installments of $90,000 to
$125,000 plus interest through
February 1, 2014 3.85% 605,000 235,000 2,144 387,856
TJotals $ 5,750,000 % 1,435,000 § 42,717 § 4,272,283

Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) Bonds

The primary government issues TIF bonds to be repaid from the property {ax revenue generaied
from the increased assessed valuation of property located within the TIF district.

Less
Interest Balance Due Within  Unamortized Due in More

Purpose Rates December 31 One Year Discourst  Than One Year
$44,800,000 2007 Redewelopment NW
District TIF bond due in installments
of $1,335,000 to $1,635,000 pius
interest threugh February 1, 2013 4.25% § 4,790,000 $ 3,155,000 § 40,357 % 1,594,643
$2,625,000 2005 Redewelopment 5SS
District TIF refunding bonds due in
instaliments of $115,000 to $165,000
plus interest through February 1, 2015 3.75% to 4.1% 1,080,000 295,000 12,011 772,989
Totals $ 5,870,000 % 3,450,000 § 52,368 § 2,367,632
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The primary government has pledged future tax incremental revenues to repay the revenue
bonds issued in 2005 and 2007, Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for infrastructure
improvements. The bonds are payable solely from tax revenues and are payable through 2015.
Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require less than 16 percent of net

revenues.

3. Intergovernmental Loan

In 2010, the Mishawaka Bond Bank, an internal service fund, issued revenue bonds to the City

and Utilities for an energy improvement project.

The City has pledged future local income tax revenue and the Utilities have pledged revenue o

repay the bonds.

Interest Balance [ue Within Cue in More
Purpose Raies December 31 One Year Than One Year
$1,366,252 2010 energy savings
bonds due in annual installments
of $273,250 plus interest
through February t, 2015 2.10% Gowernmental funds % 893,302 § 223,325 § 668,977
Business-type activties 199,700 49,925 148,775
Combined $ 1,083,002 § 273,250 § 819,752

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation, TIF and the energy savings

bonds are as follows:

Gowernmental Activities Gowmmental Funds Business-type Acthities
General Obligation Bonds TiF Bonds Energy Savings Energy Savings
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 $ 1,435000 $ 211,086 §$ 3,450,000 $ 210,709 $ 223,325 § 17,538 § 499825 § 3,921
2013 1,500,000 156,369 1,840,000 63,309 223,325 12,862 49,925 2,875
2014 1,270,000 97,088 315,000 16,265 223,328 8,185 49,925 1,830
2015 435,000 51,700 165,000 3,382 223,326 2,338 49,925 523
2015 1,110,000 10,560 - - - - - _
9,148

Totals & 5,750,000 § 526,751 $ 5870,000 § 293665 § 893,302 § 40,9823 § 199,700 $

4. Revenue Bonds

The primary government issues bonds to be paid by income derived from the acquired or

constructed assets. Revenue bonds outstanding at year end are as follows:
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Plus: Less: Less:
interest Balance at  Due Within  Unamertized Unamortized Deferral on Due in More
Purpose Rates December 31 One Year Premium Discount Refunding Than One Year

54,475 000 2007 Water refunding revenug
konds due in Installments of $40,000 1o
$220,000 plus interest through July 1, 2020 3.8% {0 5.0% $ 3,180,000 § 315000 § 21,554 % 20,062 § 223,403 % 2,653,085

$1,875,130 1994 Wastewater capital

appreciation bonds due in four installments

of $1,380,000 plus interest through

March 1, 2015 5.55% 10 5.685% 5,018,474 1,380,000 - 5,827 - 3,632,647

$8,450,000 2008 Wastewster revenue

bonds, Series A due in instaliments of

$145,000 1o $290,000 plus interest through

September 1, 2026 3.625% 10 4.0% 6,790,000 345,000 - 42,544 - 6,392,456

$350,000 2007 Wastewater revenue bonds,

Seres A due In instaiiments of 545,000 {o

$305,000 plus interest through

March 1, 2027 4.25% 350,000 - - - - 350,000

$37,225,000 2010 Wastewater revenue

bonds, Series B, due in instaliments of

$975,000 to $2,775,000 plus interest

through September 1, 2030 2% to 5% 36,250,000 1,375,000 - 351,869 - 34,523,131

Totals $ 51,508,474 $3,415000 $ 21,554 $ 430,302 5 223,403 § 47,551,323

The primary government has pledged fuiure revenues, net of operating expenses, to repay
Water and Wastewater Utilities’ bonds. Bond ordinances require monthly deposits of a poriion of
user fee revenues sufficient to meet requirements of the next principal, interest, and bank fiscal
charge paymenis. Water and Wastewater bond ordinances also reguire monthly deposits of user
fee revenues over 60 months to produce a bond reserve to approximately the maximum annual
debt service.

During 2011, the Water Utility paid $143,112 in debt payments or approximately 2 percent of
operating revenues. The Wastewater Utility paid $512,619 in debt payments or approximately 4
percent of operating revenues.

Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Principal interest
2012 $ 3,415,000 $ 1,944,950
2013 3,475,000 1,883,724
2014 3,530,000 1,802,518
2015 3,083,474 1,732,001
2016 2,285,000 1,657,080
2017-2021 12,085,000 6,022,796
20222026 13,110,000 4,348,816
2027-2031 10,615,000 1,193,981
Totals $ 51,588,474 § 21,489,866
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5. Notes and Loans Payable

The primary government's business-type activities loans are from the State Revolving Loan
Fund. Annual debt service requirements to matunity for the State Revolving Loans are as

foliows:

2012
2013
2014
2015
20186
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031

Totals

(Continued)

Principal Interest
$ 2,133,925 $ 1,842,710
2,196,926 1,773,257
2,273,924 1,701,583
3,033,926 1,627,559
3,789,000 1,513,230
20,971,000 5,528,807
17,169,000 2,102,802
3,968,796 64,959

$ 55,535,457 §$ 16,154,916

6. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2011, was as foliows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Primary Gowvemmaent Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Gowernmental activities:
Bonds payabie:
General obligation $ 7,145,000 % -~ % 1,305000 $ 5750,000 $ 1,435000
TIF 9,210,000 - 3,340,000 5,870,000 3,450,000
Less defemed amount:
For issuance discounts 138,668 - 43,581 95,085 -
Total bonds payable 16,216,334 - 4,691,419 11,524,915 4,885,000
Capital leases 174,254 - 174,254 - -
Net other postemployment
benefit obligation 7,448,737 2,610,940 - 10,059,677 -
Compensated absences 823,614 450,910 827,415 647,109 450,910
Net pension obligation 17,469,855 - 427 671 17,042,184 -
Total governmental activities
long-term liabilities $ 42,132,794 $ 3,061,850 % 5,920,755 § 39,273,885 % 5,335,910
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Beginning Ending Due Within
Primary Gowemiment Balance Additions Reductions Balance Qne Year
Business-type activties:
Revenue bonds payable:
Water Utility % 3,495,000 % - % 305000 S 3,180,000 $ 315,000
Wastewater Utility 50,053,352 270,122 1,918,000 48 408,474 3,100,000
Less deferred amount:
For issuance
discounts/premiums 433,779 - 25,029 408,750 -
On refunding 250,211 - 26,809 223,402 -
Total revenue bonds payable 52,864,362 270,122 2,168,162 50,966,322 3,415,000
Capital leases * - 242,900 48,580 194,320 48,580
Notes and loans payable * 56,624,729 1,102,682 2,190,924 55,536,497 2,133,925
Compensated absences 250,882 89,500 73,500 266,882 73,500
MNet pension abligation 53,218 - 53,218 - -
Total business-type aciivties
long-term liabilities $ 109,793,191 § 1,705,214 § 4,534,384 $ 106,964,021 $ 5,671,005

*$196,700 of loan payable and ali of the capital lease is included in internal balance on Statement of Net Assets

Compensated absences, net other postemployment benefit obligations and net pension obli-
gations for governmental activities typically have been liquidated from the General Fund and
special revenue funds. The net pension obligation for business-type activities typically has been

liquidated from the Water, Wastewater, and Electric Utility funds.

Restricted Assets

The balances of restricted asset accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows:

Construction $ 22,176,378
Customer deposits 2,687,415
Rewenue bond cowenant accounts 6,957,189
Repair accounts 14,929,738

Total restricted assets $ 48,750,720

Restatements and Reclassifications

For the year ended December 31, 2011, certain changes have been made to the financial state-
ments to more appropriately reflect financial activity of the primary government.

The prior period adjustment represents the inclusion of a previously omitted receivable for the
governmental activities, and a payable for the governmental funds; the addition of a previously
omitted asset and liability from the proprietary funds, and the deletion of assets previously included
in the business-type capital assets which had already been included in the governmental activities

capital assets.
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The following schedule presents a summary of restated beginning balances by opinion unit.

Balance Balance
as Reported Priar as Restated
December 31, Period January 1,
Opinion Unit 2010 Adjustments 2011

Governmental activities:

Net assets $ 174,257,766 $ 246,625 § 174,507,391
Gowernmental funds:

Other governmental fund balances 24 578,229 (1,116,627) 23,461,602
Business-type activities:

Total assets 242,901,206 249,625 243,150,831

Total liabilities 121,999,164 245,625 122,248,789

Net assets 120,802,042 (3,205,927) 117,696,115
Proprietary funds:

Net assets (Wastewater Utility) 49,620,192 (3,205,927) 46,414,265

IV. Other Information

A. Risk Management

The primary government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets,; errors and omissions; job related illnesses or injuries to employees; medical
benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents (excluding postemployment benefits}; and natural
disasters.

The risks of torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; job related
illnesses or injuries to employees; and natural disasters are covered by commercial insurance from
independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage for the past three years. There were no significant reductions in insurance by major cate-
gory of risk.

Medical Benefits to Employees, Retiree, and Dependenis

During 2010, the primary government joined together with three other governmental entities to form
the Indiana Association of Cities and Towns (IACT) Medical Trust, a public entity risk pool currently
operating as a commen risk management and insurance program for 11 member governmental
entities. The purpose of the risk pool is to provide a medium for the funding and administration of
Medical Benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents. The primary government pays an annual
premium to the risk pool for its Medical Benefits coverage. The risk pool is considered a self-
sustaining risk pool that will provide coverage for its members for up to $5,000,000 per insured event.
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B. Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description

The City of Mishawaka Retiree Healthcare Plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan
administered by the [ACT Medical Trust. The plan provides for medical insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses. Indiana Code 5-10-8 gives the primary government the authority fo
establish the plan. The IACT Medical Trust issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for the
participants. This report may be obtained by contacting the plan administrator at 200 South Meridian
Street, Suite 340, Indianapolis, IN 46225,

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members for the City of Mishawaka Retiree Healthcare Plan
are established and can be amended by the City's Common Council. The required contribution is
based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requiremenis. Forthe year ended December 31, 2011,
the primary government contributed $1,466,985 to the plan for current premiums. For Pre-Medicare
retirees, the primary government annually provides $400 for PERF covered employees with less than
20 years of service and pays the full single premium cost for employees who retire with 20 or more
years of service. For Post-Medicare employees, the primary government provides $400 annually
towards the cost of medical coverage regardless of the years of service.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The primary government's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense} is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a peried not to exceed 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the primary government's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the primary government's net OPEB obligation to the

pian:
Annual required contribution $ 4,060,201
Interest on net OPEB obligation 335,183
Adjustment to annual required contribution {317,489)
Annual OPEB cost 4,077,805
Contributions made 1,466,865
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,610,240
Net OPER obligation, beginning of year 7,448,737
Net OPER obligation, end of year $ 10,059,677
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The primary government's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
Year OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
12-31-09  § 3,992,086 30.7% $ 4,938,841
12-31-10 3,861,837 35.0% 7,448,737
12-31-11 4,077,905 36.0% 10,059,677

FFunded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $45,723,694, and the actuarial value of assets was $0,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $45,723,654. Since the actuarial
accrued liability was $45,723,694 and covered payroll was $25,071,329, the covered payroll as a
percentage of the Actuarial Accrued Liability was (182 percent). Actuarial valuations of an ongoing
plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounis and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject fo continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future, The
Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the
Notes to Financial Statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative {o the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumption

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include technigues that
are designed to reduce the effects of shortterm volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

in the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included an annual heaithcare cost trend rate of 9.0 percent initially, reduced
by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent by 2018. The UAAL is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected pay based on an open group. The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2011, was 30 years.
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C. Pension Plans

1.

Agent Multiple-Employer and Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

a.

Public Employees' Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The primary government contributes to the Indiana Public Employees' Retirernent Fund
(PERF), a defined benefit pension plan. PERF is an agent multiple-employer public em-
ployee retirement system, which provides retirement benefits to plan members and benefi-
ciaries. All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the defined benefit plan. State
statutes (IC 5-10.2 and 5-10.3) govern, through the PERF Board, most requirements of the
system and give the primary government authority to contribute to the plan. The PERF
retirement benefit consists of the pension provided by employer contributions plus an annuity
provided by the member's annuity savings account. The annuity savings account consists of
member's contributions, set by state statute at 3 percent of compensation, plus the interest
credited to the member's account. The employer may elect to make the coniributions on
behalf of the member.

PERF administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for
ifs participants. The report may be obtained by contacting:

[ndiana Public Retirement System
One North Capitoi, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Ph. (888) 526-1687
WWW.INprs.in.gov

Funding Policy

PERF members are required to contribute 3 percent of their annual covered salary. The
primary government is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current
rate is 7.5 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan mem-
bers and the primary government are established and may be amended by the PERF Board
of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2011, the primary government's annual pension cost and related information, as pro-
vided by the actuary, is presented in this note.

1925 Police Officers' Pension Plan

Plan Description

The primary government contributes to the 1925 Police Officers’ Pension Plan which is a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan is administered by the local pension
board as authorized by state statute (IC 36-8-6). The plan provides retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plan was established and can be
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amended by the plan administrator, as provided by state statute. The plan adminisirator
does not issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial staternents and
reguired supplementary information of the plan.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members for the 1925 Police Officers' Pension Plan
are established by state statute. The Net Pension Obligation (NPQ) is considered an
obligation of the primary government and is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. As
provided by state statute, all administrative costs are paid from the fund. Contributions and
benefits of this pension plan are recognized when due and payabie in accordance with the
terms ofthe plan. On-behalf contributions from the State of Indiana as shown in the financial
statements of $1,578,250 approximate an equal amount paid out for benefits. The primary
government has recognized these on-behalf payments as intergovermmental revenue and
public safety expenditures in the General Fund. The contribution requirements of plan mem-
bers for the 1925 Police Officers' Pension Plan are established and can be amended by
state statute.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2011, the primary government's annual pension cost and related information, as pro-
vided by the actuary, is presented in this note.

1937 Firefighters' Pension Plan

Plan Description

The primary government contributes to the 1937 Firefighters' Pension Plan which is a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan is administered by the local pension board
as authorized by state statute (IC 36-8-7). The plan provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plan was established and can be amended
by the plan administrator, as provided by state statute. The plan administrator does not
issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information of the plan.

Funding Polic

The contribution requirements of plan members for the 1937 Firefighters’ Pension Plan are
established by state statute. The Net Pension Obligation (NPQO) is considered an obligation
of the primary government and is reflected in the Statement of Net Assefs. As provided by
state statute, all administrative costs are paid from the fund. Contributions and benefits of
this pension plan are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plan. On-behalf contributions from the State of Indiana as shown in the financial statements
of $2,437,706 approximate an equal amount paid out for benefits. The primary government
has recognized these on-behalf payments as intergovernmental revenue and public safety
expenditures in the General Fund. The contribution requirements of plan members for the
1937 Firefighters' Pension Plan are established and can be amended by state statute.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2011, the primary government's annual pension cost and related information, as pro-
vided by the actuary, is presented in this note.
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d. Utility Pension Plan

Plan Descripiion

The primary government's Utilities (Water, Wastewater, and Electric} contribute to the Utility
Pension Plan, a single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Indiana
Trust & Investment Management Company, as trustee. The plan covers all employees of the
three utilities except for sewer employees of the Wastewater Utility who are covered by
PERF. The plan is administered by the primary government's Board of Works, as provided
by state statute (IC 8-1.5-3-7) and provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The trustee does not issue a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and supplementary information of the plan.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members are established by and can be amended by
the plan administrator. Currently, employees are not required to make any contributions to
the plan. The Net Pension Obligation (NPO) is considered an obligation of the primary
government and is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. As provided by state statute, all
administrative costs are paid from the fund. Centributions and benefits of this pension plan
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2011, the Utilities' annual pension cost and related information for the Utility Pension
Plan, as provided by the actuary, is presented in this note.

Actuarial Information for the Above Plansg

1925 Police 1937
Officers’ Firefighters' UHility
PERF Pension Pension Pension

Annual required contrbution $ 674,928 $ 1,448,800 % 2,450,600 3 594 557
Interest on net pension obligation {14,250) 399,300 648,900 (3,991
Adjustment to annual required

contribution 16,406 (530,200) (861,800) (101,930)
Annual pension cost 677,084 1,318,000 2,237,700 488,636
Contributions made 442 921 1,576,250 2,437,706 610,528
Increase (decrease) in net

pension obligation . 234 163 (258,250) (200,008) (121,892)
Net pension obligation,

beginning of year (203,578) 6,654,357 10,815,498 53,218
Net pension obligation,

end of year $ 30,585 % 6,396,107 $ 10615492 § {68,674)
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Officers’ Firefighters' Utility
PERF Pension Pension Pensicn
Contribution rates:

Govemment 7.5% nia n/a 10.4%
Plan members 3% 6% 8% 0%
Actuarial valuation date 07-01-11 01-01-11 01-01-11 01-01-10
Actuarial cost method Entry age, Entry age, Entry age, Entry age,

normal cost normat cost nomal cost nomal cost
Amortization method Level Level Lewel Level
percentage percentage percentage percentage
of payrall  of payroll, closed of payroll, closed  of projected
payroll, closed
Amortization period 30 years 30 years 30 years 30 years
Amortization period {from date) 07-01-08 01-01-05 01-01-05 01-01-08
Asset valuation method 4 year 4 year 4 year Smoothed
smoothed phase in of phase in of market value
market value  unreakzed and unrealized and
with 20% realized capital realized capital
carridor
1925 Police 1937 Firefighters' Utility
Actuarial Assumptions PERF Officers' Pension Pension Pension
Investment rate of retum 7.00% 6.00% 6.00% 7.50%
Projected future salary increases;
Total 4,00% 4.00% 4.00% 3.50%
Attributed fo inflation 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 2.50%
Attributed to merit/seniority 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Cost-ofliving adjustments 1.00% 2.25%/4%* 2.25%/4%* 2%
2% for retirees that retired by January 1, 1893; 0% for retirees after January 1, 1893
*2.25% converted members; 4% noncomeried members
Three Year Trend Information
Annual Percentage Net
Pension Cost of APC Pension
Year Ending (APC) Contributed Ohbligation
PERF 06-30-09 $ 475,016 93.0% 3  {349,348)
06-30-10 574,800 75.0% {203,578)
06-30-11 677,084 65.0% 30,585
1925 Police Officers' Pension Plan 12-31-08 1,153,500 142.0% 7,028,633
12-31-10 1,253,800 13C.0% 6,654,357
12-31-11 1,318,000 120.0% 6,396,107
1937 Firefighters' Pension Plan 12-31-09 2,448 100 120.0% 11,139,277
12-31-10 2,123,100 115.0% 10,815,498
12-31-11 2,237,700 105.0% 10,615,492
Utility Pension Plan 01-01-09 925,279 96.0% 215,888
01-01-10 620,456 79.2% 53,218
01-01-11 585,072 102.6% (68,674)
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Membership in the 1925 Police Officers’ Pension Pian and the 1937 Firefighters’ Pension
Plan at January 1, 2011, was comprised of the following:

1925 Police 1937
Utility Officers’ Firefighters’
Pension Pension Pension
Retires and beneficiaries currently
recening benefits 60 54 87
Terminated employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits - - -
129 1 1

Current active employees

Funded Status and Funding Progress for the Above Plans

The funded status of each plan as of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date

(except the 1925 Police Officers', the 1937 Firefighters' and the Utility Pension Plans which are

as of January 1, 2011) is as follows:

Unfunded AAL
or (Funding
Actuarial  Unfunded AAL Excess) as a
Actuarial Accrued or Annual Percentage
Vaiue of Liability (AAL) (Funding Funded Covered of Cowered
Plan Assets Entry Age Excess) Ratio Payroll Payrofl
Retirement Plan (@) (b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) {{(b-a)/c)
PERF $ 4,061,827 % 9,487,093 § 4,525,266 52.30% $ 6,605,323 65%
Litility Pension Plan 13,660,853 15,651,282 1,990,429 87.28% 5,685,044 35%
1925 Police Officers
Pension Plan 589,545 17,884 800 17,295,080 3.30% 98,700 17.523%
1637 Firefighters'
Pension Plan 902,540 30,566,300 29,663,760 2.85% 48,900 60,662%

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RS| for the above plans following the Notes to
Financial Statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial vatue of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

benefits.

Financial Statements for Defined Benefit Plans

Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets:

1625 1937

Police Firefighters' Utility
Assets Pension Pension Pension
Cash and cash equivalents $ 655,941 % 962,372 & 18,530
Receivables:

interest and dividends

- 14,825
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1925 1937
Police Firefighters’ Utikity
Assets Pension Pension Pension
Investments at fair value:
Gowernment sponsored enterprise - - 252,703
Municipal bonds - - 1,260,647
Mutual funds - - 11,692,664
Total investments - - 13,206,014 -
Total assets 3 655941 § 962,372 $ 13,239,369
Net Assets
Held in trust for;
Employees' pension benefits 3 655941 & 962,372 $ 13,239,369
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets:
1925 1937
Police Firefighters’ Utility
Additions Pension Pension Pension
Contributions:
On-behalf $ 1,576,250 $ 2,437,706 § -
Employer - - 598,801
Total contributions 1,576,250 2,437,708 598,801
Investment income {foss):
Net decrease in fair value of investments - - (430,618)
Interest - - 358,165
Total investment income (loss) - - {(71,453)
Less investment expense:
Investment activity expense - - 33,776
Net investment income (loss) - - {105,229)
Total additions 1,576,250 2,437,706 493,572
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1925 1937
Police Firefighters' Utility
Deductions Pension Pension Peansion
Benefits 1,506,849 2,369,065 778,607
Administrative expense 3,000 8,209 9,920
Total deductions 1,508,849 2,377,274 788,527
Changes in net assets 68,401 60,432 (294,955)
Net assets - beginning 589,540 901,940 13,534,324
Net assets - ending $ 655,941 $ 862,372 $ 13,236,369

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Pefined Benefit Pension Plan

1977 Police Officers’ and Firefighters' Pension and Disability Fund

Plan Description

The primary government contributes to the 1977 Police Officers’ and Firefighters' Pension and
Disability Fund, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Indiana Public Employees' Retirement Plan (PERF) for all police officers and firefighters hired
after April 30, 1977.

State statute (IC 36-8-8) regulates the operations of the system, including benefits, vesting and
requirements for contributions by employers and by employees. Covered employees may retire
at age 52 with 20 years of service. An employee with 20 years of service may leave service, but
will not receive benefits until reaching age 52. The plan also provides for death and disability
benefits.

PERF issues a pubilicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for its participants. That report may be
obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirement System
One North Capitol, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Ph. (888) 526-1687
WWW.INPTSs.in.gov

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Costs

Plan members are required to contribute 6 percent of the first-class police officers' and fire-
fighters' salary and the primary government is to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.
The current rate is 19.5 percent of the first-class police officers' and firefighters' salary. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the primary government are established by the
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Board of Trustees of PERF. The primary government's contributions to the plan for the years
ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were $1,846,266, $1,770,001, and $1,782,987,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The contribution requirements of
plan members for the 1877 Police Officers' and Firefighters' Pension Pian are established and
can be amended by state statute.

D. Net Assets — Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

As of December 31, 2011, net assets — invested in capital assets, net of related debt is calculated as

follows:
Gowrnmental Business-type
Aciivties Activities Totals
Net capital assets $ 146,195,152 $ 178,446,825 §$ 324,641,977
Less: .
Total capital leases payable - (194,320) (184,320)
Total notes and loans payable - (55,536,497) (55,536,497)
Total general obligation bonds payable, net (5,707,283) - {5,707,283)
Total revenue bonds payable, net - (50,966,322} (50,966,322)
Total TIF bonds payable, net (5,817,632) - {5,817,632)
Add:
Unspent bond/lcan proceads - 22,176,378 22,176,378

Imested in capital assets, net of related debt § 134,670,237 $ 93,925,064 $ 228,596,301

E. Subsequent Events

in 2012, the City of Mishawaka will replace Fire Station #4 with a new building estimated to cost
$3,700,000. The construction will be financed through a lease with the City of Mishawaka Building
Corporation.

In 2012, the City expects to sign a consent decree with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
to resolve claims against the City for alleged violations of the Clean Water Act. The decree includes
several provisions, including a long-term control plan that requires the City to complete a construction
program over 20 years at a cost of approximately $140 to 160 million to comprehensively upgrade
and expand the City's sewage collection, storage, conveyance, and treatment system.
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Public Employees' Retirement Fund

Unfunded
Actuarial Excess of AAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Assets Over Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets {AALY AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {B} {a-b) {a/b) (c} {(a-b)c)
07-01-09 $ 5,767,837 $ B779530 3 (2,011,693) T1% $ 7,160,537 (28%)
07-01-10 5,658,283 9,121,439 (3,423,156) 62% 8,370,081 {54%)
a7-01-11 4,861,827 9,487,093 (4,525,266} 52% 8,605,323 {69%)
1925 Palice Officers’ Pension Plan
Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payrof
Date (a) (b) (a-b) (a/b) (c} {{a-b)ic)
01-01-06 3 476,410 § 21,277,300 ${20,800.890}) 2% 5 176,500 {11,785%)
01-01-07 502,195 21,441,100  (20,938,905) 2% 182,000  (11,505%)
01-01-08 368,238 21,518,500 (21,161,261} 2% 185,900 (11,378%)
01-01-08 276,566 17,137,900  (16,361,334) 2% ** -
01-01-10 475,282 17,848,000 {17,372,718) 3% 94 900 {18,306%)
01-01-11 589,540 17,884,600  (17,295,060) 3% 98,700  (17,523%)
1937 Firefighters' Pension Plan
Unfunded
Actuarial AAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Vaiuation Assets {AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) )] {a-b) (a/b) {c) {{a-b)/c)
01-01-086 $ 754,045 § 29,758,700 §(29,004,651) 3% $ 262,600 {11,045%)
01-01-07 656,088 25,188,400  (2B,532,332) 2% 225700 (12.,642%)
01-01-08 473,089 28,320,500 (28,847 ,411) 2% 438,300 {20,859%)
61-01-09 282,384 35,408,600 (35,115,216} 1% = e
01-01-10 829,813 30,278,300 (29,448,487) 3% 94,000 {31,328%)
04-01-11 902,540 30,566,300 (29,563,760} 3% 48,900 (60,662%)
Uiility Pension Pian
Unfunded
Actuarial AAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Vatue of Liakility Unfunded Funded Covered of Coverad
Valuation Assets {AAL) AAL Ratio Payrolt Payroll
Date (a) (b} (a-b) (a/b) {c) {{a-b)/c)
01-01-06 $ 11,287,256 % 11,287,256 § - 100% $ 6,227,897 0%
01-01-07 12,979,939 12,679,938 - 100% 5,587,670 0%
01-01-08 13,977,569 14,128,822 (151,153) 99% 6,131,827 (2%}
01-01-08 13,585,001 14,870,175 (1,285,174) 91% 6,624,741 {19%)
01-01-10 13,578,454 15,373,954 (1,795,500) 88% 5,891,118 (30%)
01-01-11 13,660,853 15,651,282 (1,990,429) 87% 5,685,044 (35%)
Other Posternpioyment Benefits {OPEE}
Unfunded
Actuarial Excess of AAlL asa
Actuarial Accrued Assets Ovar Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability {(Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets {AALY AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) (= (a-b) {a/b) {c) ((a-b)/c)
01-01-09 $ - % 42131601 $(42,131,601) 0% $ 26,508,798 {159%)
01-01-10 - 43,153,167  (43,153,157) 0% 24,341,086 {177 %)
01-01-11 - 45,723,604  (45,723,694) 0% 25,071,328 {182%)

**Information not available
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EMPLOYER AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES

1925 Police Officers’ Pension Plan

Annual Percentage
Required of ARC
Year Contributicn Contributed
Ending (ARC) City Siate
12-31-06 3 1,569,200 38% 53%
12-31-07 1,602,900 34% 46%
12-31-08 1,830,400 32% 50%
12-31-09 1,260,600 19% 109%
12-31-10 1,381,800 0% 118%
12-31-11 1,448,800 0% 109%
1837 Firefighters' Pension Plan
Annual Percentage
Required of ARC
Year Cantribution Contributed
Ending (ARC} City Staie
12-31-08 § 2180300 36% 59%
12-31-07 2,170,600 35% 61%
12-31-08 2,180,200 34% 64%
12-31-08 2,646,100 9% 102%
12-31-10 2,326,100 0% 105%
12-31-11 2,450,600 0% 299%

Empioyer Centributions - Utilily Pension Plan

Annual
Required
Year Contribution Percentage
Ending (ARC} Contributed
01-01-05 3 548 845 137%
01-01-06 569,825 104%
01-01-07 375,430 165%
01-01-08 443 477 75%
01-01-09 925,443 104%
01-01-10 621,882 79%
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Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Finial Amounts (Negative}
Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 18,023,708 § 15,023,708 § 17,107,947 3§ (815,751)
Licenses and permits 110,150 110,150 359,538 248,389
Intergovernmental 3,284 265 3,284,266 4,130,857 846,601
Charges for services 540,000 540,000 1,694,978 1,154,978
Fines and forfeits 30,000 30,000 55,087 25,097
Inferest 10,000 10,000 13,683 3,683
Sale and use of property - - 24,389 24,399
Other 368,000 368,000 BS7 725 489,725

Total revenues 22,366 124 22,368 124 24 244 235 1,878,111

Expendifures:;
Current:
General governmeant:
Mayor:
Personal services 134,817 134,817 134,766 51
Supplies 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Cther services and charges 12,209 12,308 11,819 489
City Clerk:
Personal services 118,081 118,081 118,081 -
Supplies 2,654 2,654 1,508 1,146
Other services and charges 17,000 17,000 12,921 4,079
Ceniral Motor Foot:
Persenal services 609,996 609,996 561,385 48,611
Supplies 922,988 993,428 991,697 1,731
Other services and charges 71,712 73,215 41,638 31,577
Cemmon Coungil:
Personal services 92,475 92 475 92,475 -
Supplies 283 283 210 73
Other services and charges 9,863 9,862 6,045 3,818
City Hall:
Personal services 335 335 335 -
Supplies 1,807 1,807 1,807 -
Controlier:
Personal services 2,156,344 2,254,344 2,198,792 57,552
Supplies 15,536 15,836 11,284 4,242
Other services and charges 1,883,526 1,845,406 1,846,627 98,862
Human Resources:
Personal services 88,863 98,863 86,331 12,532
Supplies 1,018 1,016 498 518
Other services and charges 24,025 24 025 14,741 9,284
Capitat outlay 8,000 8,000 7,013 987
information Technology:
Personal services 261,530 281,530 261,530 -
Supplies 1,702 1,702 1,082 620
Other services and charges §,000 5,000 3] 5,994
Cemetery:
Cther services and charges 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
legal:
Persenal services 100,088 100,089 100,088 1
Supplies 1,500 1,500 951 549
Other services and charges 12,863 12,863 10,883 2,000
Planning:
Personal services 175,183 175,183 175,181 2
Supplies 3,500 3,500 2,377 1,123
Other services and charges 8400 8,400 5,724 2,676
Total general government 8,773,485 7,005,509 8716985 288,524

Continued on next page
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Expenditures (continued):
Current (continued):
Public safety:
Poiice:
Personal services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Fire:
Personal services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Cede Enforcement:
Personal services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Building Department:
Personal services
Supplies
Other services and charges

Total public safety
Highways and streets:
Engineering:
Parsonal services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total highways and streets
Sanitation:
Recycling:
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total sanitation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) cof revenues over {under} expenditures

Cther fingncing sources:
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

(Continued)
Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounis Basis Positive

Original Final Amounts {Negative)
9,968,886 10,079,315 9,907,226 172,089
72,058 72,058 58,193 13,865
147,185 147 221 131,269 15,952
9,476,092 9,453,267 9,132,440 320,827
163,481 193,481 155,353 38,128
188,259 306,259 231,130 75,128
215,900 215,900 215,698 2
3,620 3,620 2,291 1,328
26,838 26,838 16,190 10,648
182,126 182,126 177,123 5,003
3,798 3,799 3,274 525
3,750 3,750 2,363 1,387
20,451,994 20,687,624 20,032,750 554,884
266,414 266,414 264,314 2,100
4,064 4,064 2691 1,373
10,000 10,000 4,506 5494
280,478 280,478 27151 8,967
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
15,000 15,000 - 15,000
20,000 20,000 - 20,000
27,525,967 27,993,621 27,021,246 g§72,375
(5,159,843) (5,627,497) (2,777.011) 2,850,488
750,000 750,000 2,921,072 2,171,072
(4,409,843) (4,877,487) 144,061 5,021,558
5,450,042 5,450,042 5,450,042 -
§ 1.040199 % 572545 % 5,584,103 § 5,021,558
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET/GAAP RECONCILIATION -
GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011
The major differences between Budgetary (Non-GAAP) basis and GAAP basis are:
a. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary)} as opposed to susceptible to accrual (GAAP).
b. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary} as opposed fo when the liability is incurred (GAAP).

c. Expenditures are recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes when purchase orders are issued,

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at the end of the year on a budgetary basis to
a GAAP basis are as follows:

General
Net change in fund balance, budget basis b 144,061
To adjust revenues for accruals 308,104
To adjust expenditures for accruats (34,553)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances . 159,514
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis 3 577,126
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Special Revenue Funds

Motor Vehicle Highway -

Local Road and Street -

Park and Recreation -

Park and Recreation Gift -

Public Safety -

Rainy Day -

Rainy Day Public Safety -

Police Drug Investigation
Assistance -

Off-Street Parking -

Alley Paving -

Sidewalk and Curb Repair -

Industrial Development -

Unsafe Building -

Trash Collection -

Mishawaka Giit -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

To account for street construction and the cperations of the street and
maintenance department. Financing is provided by state motor vehicle
highway distributions and a specific annual property tax levy.

To account for operation and maintenance of local and arterial road and
street systems. Financing is provided by state gascline tax distributions.

To account for the operation of the City park system. Financing is pro-
vided by a specific annual property tax levy to the extent that user fees
and miscellaneous revenues are insufficient to provide such financing.

To account for donations to the Park and Recreation Department.

To account for distributions of the Public Safety Local Option Income
Tax. These funds can only be used for public safety.

To account for supplemental distributions of COIT and CEDIT. These
funds can be used for any purpose permitted by state statute for other
revenues of the City.

To account for a supplemental distribution of excess welfare receipts from

the county. These funds can only be used for public safety.

To account for expenditures for drug and arson investigation and training
of police personnel financed by state grants, donations, and sale of con-
fiscated assets.

To account for operations of City owned parking lots. Revenues are
received from parking permit fees.

To account for revenue received from residents for improvements to
alleys.

To account for revenue received from residents for improvements to adja-
cent sidewalks and curbs.

To account for state loans to provide loan money to business and com-
mercial customers for rehabilitation.

To account for expenditures and revenue related to demolition of unsafe
buildings.

To account for fransaction related to trash collections. Residents are
billed monthly for collections and the City has a contract to provide
Services.

To account for donations for various projects.

B7-




________________________________________

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
{Continued)

Law Enforcement
Continuing Education - To account for court fees, fees charged for furnishing accident reports,
handgun application fees, and fees charged for vehicle inspections.
Expenditures are for the continuing education and training of law enforce-
ment officers.

lLocal Law Enforcement
Block Grant - To account for federal grant funds received to purchase equipment for the
Police Department.

Levy Excess - To account for the portion of the property taxes received which exceeds
100 percent of the unit's levy. [n subsequent years, the balance in the
fund will be used to reduce the amounts raised by taxation.

Insurance Recovery - To account for insurance adjustment proceeds to cover repair claims.

Bicentennial Gift - To account for donations for the bicentennial celebration. Interest earned
on these monies is receipted to this fund.

Community Development - To account for Housing and Urban Development {(HUD) monies used for
low or no interest residential rehabilitation loans and for urban redevelop-
ment and housing. Pay back monies from loans are also used for these
purposes.

Property Rehabilitation
Revolving - To account for Housing and Urban Development (HUD) monies used for
low or no interest residential rehabilitation loans and for the First Time
Home Buyers program. Pay back monies from loans are also used for
this purpose.

DOC Community Development - To account for specific projects originally funded by state grants from the
Department of Commerce. Some of the grant money was used to make
loans to local businesses. New projects funded with payback monies
must be approved by the Depariment of Commerce.

Park Nonreverting Operating - To account for some operating expenses at the City pools and golf
course. Financing is provided by improvement fees charged by the Park
Department.

Criminal Assistance Grant - To account for federal funds received for criminal prevention and inter-

vention programs coordinated by the police department.

NSP (1) Grant - To account for federal funds received for a neighborhood stabilization
program.

NSP (3} Grant - To account for federal funds received for a neighborhood stabilization
program.

State Grant - To account for state funds received for street improvements to the Capital

Avenue corridor.
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Debt Service Funds

Municipal Bond No. 1 -

TIF {Tax Incremental Financing)
NW Redempiion and
Reserve -

TIF (Tax Incremental Financing)
S5 Redemption and
Reserve -

Capital Projects Funds

Cumulative Building and
Fire Fighting Equipment -

Cumulative Capital
improvement -

Cumulative Sewer -

General Improvement -

Consolidated Project
Expenditures -

Cumulative Capital
Development -

Energy Saving Improvements -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(Continued)

To account for debt retirement of the City's general obligation bonds.
Financing is provided by a specific tax levy.

To account for debt retirement for the Northwest (NW) District bond
issues. Financing is provided by transfers from the Tax Incremental
Financing NW General Fund.

To account for debt retirement for the Southside (SS) District bond issue.
Financing is provided by transfers from the Tax Incremental Financing SS
General Fund.

To account for financial resources for the purchase of fire equipment.
Financing is provided by a specific property tax levy.

Te account for financial resources related to improvement projects
financed by state cigaretie tax distributions. Transfers may be made to
the General Fund.

Te account for financial rescurces for the construction or repairing of
storm sewers or sewage disposal plants and sanitary sewers. Financing
is provided by a specific property tax levy.

To account for revenue and expenditures for public improvement projects.
Project costs are assessed against property owners benefitted by the
improvement projects. The time period for payment of the assessments
cannot exceed five years. All interest and penalties collected on
assessments are receipted to the General Fund.

To account for balances remaining in closed out funds and to pay ex-
penditures incurred on these past projects.

Te account for financial resources related to development projects. Fi-
nancing is provided by a specific property tax levy.
To account for expenditures made for updates to the City's heating and

cooling systems. Financing is provided from the proceeds of a revenue
bond issue provided by the Mishawaka Bond Bank.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
{Continued)

Park Bond Capital - To account for expenditures made for various improvements to park
properties. Financing is provided from proceeds of a general obligation
bond issue.

County Economic Pevelopment
Income Tax (CEDIT) - To account for financial resources related to development projects.
Financing is provided by a tax on income.

Tax Incremental Financing (TIF}

S5S General - To account for expenditures made for public improvement projects in the
Southside (SS) property tax incremental financing district. Financing is
provided by incremental taxes coilected on property located in this
district. Amounts needed for bond retirement are transferred annually to
the proper debt service fund.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJCOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2011

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle Local Road Park and Park and Public Rainy
Highway and Street Recreation  Recreation Gifi Safety Day

Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,220,420 % 703,781 % 1348228 § 67,484 § 1,333,449 § 1,788,321
Receivables (net of aliowances for uncollectibles):

Taxes 92,178 - 93,200 - - -

AcCounts - - 1,134 144 - -

intergovernmental 224,127 72,142 - - 198,302 -

Loans receivable - - - - - _
Total assets $ 3,536,726 % 775,825 $ 14428662 $ 67628 & 1531751 $ 1,768,321
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabiities:

Accounts payable $ 33601 S 77,608 % 37,814 % - % 11,781 § -

Acorued payroll and withholdings payable 41,871 - 35,508 - - -

Contracts payable - B - - - -

Shori-term loan payable - - - - - -

Energy savings bonds - - - - 305,505 -

Uneamed revenue 92,179 - 93,300 - - -

Total iiakilities 167,651 77,608 166,620 - 317,296 -

Fund balances:

Nonspendabie:

Long-term loans receivable - - - - - -
Restricted 3,369,075 698,315 1,276,042 - 1,214 455 -
Committed - - - - - 1,768,321
Assigned - - - 67,628 - -

Total fund balances 3,369,075 698,315 1,278,042 67.628 1,214,455 1,768,321

Total liakilities and fund balances $ 3536726 $ 775923 § 1442662 § 67,528 % 1.531,751 3§ 1,768,321

GContinued on next page
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Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovemmental
Loans receivabie

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable
Contracts payable
Short-term ioan payable
Energy savings bends
Unearned revenus

Totai llabitities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans receivable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Totat fund balances

Total liabilifies and fund balances

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2011
(Continued)

Special Revenue

Rainy Day Police Drug

Public Investigation Off-Street Alley Sidewalk and Industrial
Safety Assistance Parking Paving Curb Repair  Development
3 159,009 § 14,591 § 10,298 $ 1631 § 58,351 § 54,518
- - - - - 3,719
$ 159009 % 14,591 8 10,299 § 1631 % 58,351 § 58,237
$ - % - 8 44 3 - % - % -
14,818 - - - - -
14,818 - 44 - - -
- - - - - 58,237
144,191 - - - - -
- 14,591 10,255 1.631 58,351 -
144,191 14,891 10,255 1,631 58,351 58,237
$ 159,008 % 14,591 $ 10,298 § 1621 § 58,351 § 58,237

Continued on next page
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Assetls

GCash and cash eguivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Loans receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payrell and withholdings payable
Contracts payable
Short-ferm loan payable
Energy savings bonds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans receivabie
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabiities and fund balances

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Decermnber 31, 2011

(Confinued)
Special Revenue
Law Local Law
Enforcement  Enforcement
Unsafe Trash Mishawaka Continuing Black Levy
Building Collection Gift Education Grant Excess
$ 258 % 430,467 § 197180 § 51,943 § G28 §
- 130,489 - 95 .
$ 258 § 560,956 % 197,180 & 52,038 5 928 $
3 - $ 162,557 § 506§ BA422 § - 8
- 162,557 506 8,422 -
B - - 43,618 928
25¢ - - - -
- 398,399 195,674 - -
259 398,399 196,674 43,616 928
3 263 § 560556 3 197,180 % 52,038 §$ 928 §

Continued on next page
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Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Recelvables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Loans receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabitities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable
Centracts payable
Short-term ioan payable
Energy savings bonds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilitfes

Fupd balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans receivable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Totali liakilities and fund balances

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Special Revenue
Property pDoc Park
Insurance Bicentenmial Community  Rehabilffation Community  Monreverting
Recovery Gift Development _ Revolving Development  Operating
$ 59,504 3 1,326 % 62,775 $ 148,503 $ - § 334,753
B - - - - 136
- - 94,439 - - -
- - 602,018 - - -
3 58,504 % 1,326 % 759,232 % 148,503 $ - % 334,888
44,539
$ 1,568 § - 3 4,564 § - § -~ B 2,544
- - 115,107 - - -
- - - 111,716 - -
1,568 - 119,771 111,716 - 2,544
- - 557,633 - - -
- - 81,828 36,787 . - 332,345
57,936 1,326 - - - -
57,938 1,326 539,461 36,787 - 332,345
§ 58,504 % 1,326 % 753,232 3 148503 § - $ 334,889
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Assets

Cash and cash squivalents

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2011

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Taxes

Accounts
intergovemmentat
Loans receivable

Total assets

Liakilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payabie
Contracts payable
Shert-term loan payable
Energy savings bonds
Unearned revenue

Total liahilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term loans receivabie
Restricted
Committed
Assighed

Total fund batances

Total liabilities and fund balances

(Continued)
Special Revenue
Criminal
Assistance NSP {1) NSP (3) State
Grant Grant Grant Grant Totals

$ 54,270 % 570 20352 % 70,7458  $ 10,173,058
- - - - 185,479
- - - - 131,998
36,350 38,708 88,965 - 751,033
- - - - 605,737
$ 90,620 § 39,278 107317 8 70146 § 11,847,305
5 - % - 1,723 § - $ 342,842
- - - - 77377
- - - - 129,925
- 20,070 105,085 - 236,881
- - - - 305,505
- - - - 185479
- 20,070 106,818 - 1,278,009
- - - - 557,633
90,620 19,208 499 70,148 7.292 101
- - - - 1,912,771
- - - - 808,791
90,620 19,208 499 70,146 10,568,286
$ 90,620 § 39,278 107,317 § 70,1468  § 11,847,305
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Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):

intergovernmental
Loans receivable

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and withholdings payable
Contracts payable

Short-term joan payable

Energy savings bonds

Unearned revenue

Long-term loans receivable

Total fund balances

Total liabiities and fund balances

CITY OF MISHAWAKA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2011

{Continued)
Debt Service
Municipal TIF NW TIF NW TIF 88

Bond No. 1 Redempiion Reserve Reserve Totals
$ 832,311 § 269,200 1,232,139 $ 376,319 2,754,738
54,965 - - - 84,965
$ 9172756 § 269200 1,232,139 $ 376,319 2,838,701
$ 500 % - - $ - 500
84,965 - - - 84,965
85,455 - - - 85,465
831,811 269,200 1,232,139 376,319 2,754,238
831,811 259,200 1,232,139 376,319 2,754,236
$ 917,276 % 269,200 1,232,139 3 376,319 § 2,838,701
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Becember 31, 2011

{Continued)
Capital Projects
Cumulative
Building and  Curmulative Consolidated  Cumulative
Fire Fighting Capital Cumulative General Project Capital
Equipment  Improvement Sewer Improvement Expenditures Develepment
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 97,361 § 990,563 $ 1785310 § BA.66Y & - § 488110
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): .
Taxes 1,961 - 24,236 - - 18,632
Accounts - - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - - -
Loans receivable - - - - - -
Total assets % 94,322 § 990,563 § 1,819546 § 55567 § - § 817,742
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 7,518 § - § - % - % - % 97,846
Accrued payrell and withholdings payabie - - - - - -
Contracts payable - - 358,821 - - -
Shortterm loan payable - - - - - -
Energy savings bonds - - - - - -
Unearned revenue 1,961 - 24,236 - - 18,632
Total liabilities 9,479 - 381,157 - - 116,478
Fund balances:
Nenspendable:

Long-term loans receivable - - - - - -
Restricted 89,843 990,563 1,438,389 55,567 - 401,264
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned - - - - - -

Totai fund balances 89,843 990,563 1,438,389 55,667 - 401,264

Total liahilities and fund balances $ 99,322 § 990,563 $ 1,819,546 § 55,567 § - % 517,742

Continued on next page
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net of allowances for uncolleclibles):

Taxes

Accounts
Intergovernmental
Loans receivabie

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withheldings payable
Coniracts payabie
Short-term toan payable
Energy savings bonds
tUneamed revenue

Total liahilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term foans recelvable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Capital Projects
Total
Energy Nonmajor
Saving Park TIF 88 Govermnmental
improvernents  Bond Capital CEDIT General Tatals Funds
- % 588 § 5,108,714 § 3726480 § 12,273,683 § 250201,487
- - - 113,483 158,312 428,756
- - - - - 131,898
- - 268,664 - 268,654 1,018,697
- - - - - 805,737
- 3 588 § 5377,378 § 3,838,863 § 12,700,669 $ 27,387,675
- & - 3 29854 % 5938 $ 141,187 484,499
- - - - - 77,377
- - - - 358,821 486,846
- - - - - 236,881
- - 587,797 - 587,797 893,302
- - - 113,483 158,312 428,756
- - 517,651 119,422 1,244,187 2,607,661
- - - - - 557 633
- - - - 2,975,626 13,021,963
- 588 4.759,727 - 4,760,315 6,673,086
- - - 3,720,541 3,720,541 4,527,332
- 588 4 758,727 3,720,541 11,456,482 24,780,014
- % 588 § 5577378 % 36399653 § 12700669 § 27387675

-79-




CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Special Revenue

Motor
Vehicle l.ocat Road Park and Park and Public Rainy
Highway and Street Recreation Recreation Gift Safety Day

Revenuss:
Taxes:

Property $ 1,744,416 § - % 1,765625 § - 3% - § -
Licenses and permits - - - - - -
Intergovemmental 2,123,850 411,215 104,990 - 2,320,106 -
Charges for services 5,700 - 437,982 12,237 - -
Interest - - - - - -
Sale and use of property - - 193,542 - - -
Gifts and donations - - - 68,596 - -
Other 5539 157 8,252 - 26,095 -

Total revenues 3,879,505 411,372 2,507,391 78,833 2,346,201 -

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment - - - - - 74,124
Public safety - - - - 2,515 627 -
Highways and streets 2,796,519 221,691 - - - -
Sanitation - - - -
Culture and recreation - - 2,758,105 89,304 - -
Community development - - - - - -

Debt service:
Principal - - - - 174,254 -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - - 5,933 -

Capital outlay:
General govemment - - - - _ -
Puplic safety - - - - - -
Highways and streeis - - - - - .
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Community development - - - - - -

Total expenditures 2,796,519 221,691 2,758,105 89,304 2,698,714 74,124

Excess (deficiency} of revenues )
over {under) expenditures 1,082,986 189,681 (250,714) (10,471) {352,513) (74,124)

QOther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - _
Transfers out - - . N _ _

Total other financing sources and uses - - - - - n

Net change in fund balances 1,082,986 189,681 (250,714} (10,471) (352,513) (74,124)

Fund Balances - January 1 - restated 2 286,089 508,634 1,626,756 78,099 1,566,968 1,842 445

Fund Balances - December 31 $ 3369075 3 698315 § 1276,042 § 67628 $ 1214455 § 1,768,321

Continued on pext page
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011
(Continued)

Special Revenue

Rainy Day Police Drug
Public Invesfigation Off-Street Alley Sidewalk and Industrial
Safety Assistance Parking Paving Curb Repair  Development

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property % - $ - % - 3 -8 .
Licenses and permits - - 3,547 - - N
Intergovernmental - 5,039 - - - _
Charges for services - _
Interest - - - - - .
Sale and use of property - - - - - -
Gifts and donations - -
Cther - - - 1,631 9,867 180

Totad revenues - 5,039 3,547 1,631 9,957 180

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment -
Publiic safety 341,073 - 18,311 - - -
Highways and streets - - - _ _ _
Sanitation - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Community development - - - - - 305

Debt service:
Principal - - - _ _ R
Interest and fiscal charges - ; - - - - -

Capital outiay:
General govemment - - - - - _
Public safety - - - - - -
Highways and streets - - - - - -
Cutture and recreation - - - - _ _
Community development - - - - . -

Total expenditures 341,073 - 19,311 - - 308

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendifures {341,073} 5,039 (15,764) 1,631 9,967 {125)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - - -

Totat other financing sources and uses - - - - - .

Net change in fund balances (341,073) 5,039 {15,764) 1,631 9,967 {125)

Fund Balances - January 1 - restated 485,264 9,662 26,019 - 48 384 58,362

Fund Balances - December 31 § 144,181 § 14,591 % 10,255 § 1631 §$ 58,351 § 58,237

Continued on next page
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 3%, 2011
{Continued)

Special Revenue

Law
Enforcement
Cantinuing
Education

Trash Mishawaka
Collection Gift

Unsafe
Buliding

Local Law
Enforcement
Block
Grant

Lewy
Excess

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property $ - % - % - % -
Licenses and pernits - 44,000
intergovemmental - - - 1,170
Charges for services - 2,072,791 - 23,360
Interest - - - -
Saie and use of property - - - -
Gifts and donations - _
Other - 1,890

497

Total revenues - 2,074,781 39,027

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment - - .
Public safety - - -
Highways and streets - - -
Sanitation - 1,954 482 - -
Culture and recreation - - 36,821 -
Community development - - - -

Debt service:
Principal - - - _
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -

Capital outlay:
General government - - . -
Pubiic safety - - - -
Highways and streets - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Community deveiopment - - - -

Total expenditures - 1,854 482 36,931 80,756

66,105

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures - 120,299 17,060 {41,769)

(66,105}

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources and uses - - - -

Net change in fund balances - 120,299 17,080 (41,759)

Fund Balances - January 1 - restated 25% 278,100 178,614 85,385

928

(86,105}

66,105

Fund Balances - December 31 & 259 § 398,399 § 198,674 $

43616 § 928
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011
{Continued)

Special Revenue

Property DOC Park
Insurance Bicentennial  Community  Rehabilitaton  Community  Nonreverting
Recovery Gift Development  Revolving  Development  Operating

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property 3 - % - 3 - 8 - § - % -
Licenses and permits - - -
Intergovernmental - - 615,207 327,982 - -
Charges for services - - - - - 97,840
Interest - 1 - - - -
Sale and use of property - - - - - 58,300
(5ifts and donations - - -
Other 44 990 - 65 625 492 631 - 10,0158

Total revenues 44 590 1 680,832 820,813 - 166,155

Expenditures:

Current:
General govemment 17,032 - - - - -
Public safety - - - - - -
Highways and streets - - - - - -
Sanitation - - - - - -
Culiure and recreation - - - - - 261,964
Community development - - 599 688 800,570 5,581 -

Debt service:
Principal - - - - N .
interest and fiscal charges - - - 537 - -

Capital outlay:
General govemment - - - - - -
Fublic safety - - - - - -
Highways and streets - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Community development - - - - - -

Total expenditures 17,032 - 692,688 801,107 5,581 261,964

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 27,868 1 (18,856) 19,506 (5581} (95,8089}

Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - - :
Transfers out - - - - - _

Total cther financing sources and uses - - - - - -

Net change in fund balances 27,958 1 {18,856) 19,508 {5,581) (55,808}

Fund Balances - January 1 - restated 29,978 1,325 658,317 17,281 5,581 428,154

Fund Balances - December 31 ] 57,936 § 1,326 § 639,451 § 36,787 § - § 332345

Continued on next page
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CITY OF MISHAWAIKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Special Revenue
Criminal
Assistance NSP (1) NSP (3} Staie
Grant Grant Grant Grant Totals
Revenues:
Taxes:

Property 3 - 3 - 8 - % - % 3510,041
Licenses and permits - - - - 17,647
intergovernmental 748,348 570,338 125,492 - 8,848,728
Charges for services - - - - 2649910
Inferest - - - - 1
Sale and use of property - - - E 251,842
Gifts and donations - - - - 120,587
Other - 21,695 500 - 589,764

Total revenues 246,349 £92,034 125,962 - 14,088,431
Expenditures:
Curent:
General govermment - - - - 157,261
Public safety 218,661 - - - 3,176,368
Highways and streets - - - - 3,018,210
Sanitation - - - - 1,054 482
Culture and recreation - - - - 3,146,304
Community development - 572,840 125,493 - 2,204 477
Debt service:
Principal - - - - 174,254
Interest and fiscal charges - - - - 9,470
Capital outlay:
General govemment - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Highways and streets - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - -
Community deveiopment - - - - . -
Total expenditures 219,661 572,840 125,493 - 13,840,826
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures 26,688 18,194 499 - 247,605
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources and uses - - - - -
Net change in fund balances 26,688 19,194 499 - 247 605
Fund Balances - January 1 - restated 63,632 14 - 70,146 10,221,691
Fund Balances - December 31 $ 90620 $ 19,208 % 489 $ 70,146 § 10,569,296

Continued cn next page
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Revenues:

Taxes:
Property

Licenses and permits
intergovemmental
Charges for services
interest
Sale and use of property
Gifts and denations
Other

Tetal revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community development
Debt senice:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capitai outlay:
General govermment
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Community development

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under; sxpenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing scurces and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund Batances - January 1 - restated

Fund Balances - December 31

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

{Continued)
Debt Senvice
Municipal T MW TIF NW TIF 88 TIF 85
Bend No. 1 Redemption Reserve Redemption Reserve Totals
$ 1,703,808 § -8 - $ - 8 - § 1703898
98,095 - - - - 98,095
- 2,457 2,525 524 475 5981
1,801,993 2,457 2,525 524 475 1,807,874
1,395,000 3,060,000 - 280,000 - 4,735,000
264,410 301,245 - 50,877 - 616,532
1,659,410 3,361,245 - 330,877 - 5.351,532
142,583 (3,358,788) 2,525 (330,353) 475 (3,543,558)
- 3,361,244 - 331,000 - 3,692,244
- 3,361,244 - 331,000 - 3,682,244
142,583 2,456 2,525 647 475 148,686
588,228 268744 1,225,614 44,120 375,844 2,605,550
$ 831811 § 269200 § 1232139 § 44767 3 376318 § 2754238
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Revenues:
Taxes:

Property

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Interest

Sale and use of property

Gifts and donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General govermmment
Public safety

Highways and streets
Sanitation

Culture and recreation
Community development

Debt service:

Principal

interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay:

General government
Public safety

Highways and sireets
Culture and recraation
Community development

Total expendifures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances - January 1 - restated

Fund Balances - December 31

CITY OF MISHAWAKA

COMEBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued}
Capitat Projects
Cumuiative
Building and Cumulative Consolidated  Cumulative
Fire Fighting Capital Cumuiative General Project Capital
Equipment  Improvement Sewer Improvement  Expenditures  Development
3 37115 % - % 458,639 § - % - & 352,595
- - 41,543 - - -
2,144 133,701 171,763 - - 85,959
- - 51,429 - 5,050 14,291
39,259 133,701 723,374 - 6,060 452 855
- - - - - 318,725
30313 - 605,019 - - 448
- - - - - 135,394
- - - - 15,088 -
30,313 - 605,019 - 16,068 455,667
8,946 133,701 118,355 - (10,018) (2,712)
§,945 133,701 118,355 - {10,018} 2,712
80,897 856,862 1,320,034 55,567 10,018 403,876
3 89,843 $  GO0563 3 1.43838% 3 55567 § - § 401,254

Centinued on next page
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued}
Capital Projects
Total
Energy Nonmajor
Saving Park TIF 83 Governmental
Improvermnents Bond Capital CEBRIT General Totals Funds
Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ - % - % - $ 859,886 § 1,708,335 § 6,922,774
Licenses and permits - - - - 41,543 59,000
intergovemmental - - 2,905,390 - 3,298,967 10,245,801
Charges for services - - - - - 2649910
Interest - - - 2,222 2222 8,204
Sale and use of property ' - - - - - 251,842
Gifts and donations - - - - - 120,587
Cther - - - 10,317 82 087 771,851

Total revenues - - 2,905,380 872,525 5133,154 24%,029,559
Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment - - - - - 157,261
Public safety - - - - - 3,176,368
Highways and streets - - - - - 3,018,210
Sanitation - - - - - 1,954,482
Culture and recreation - - - - - 3,146,304
Community development - - - - - 2,204,477
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - 4,809,254
interest and fiscal charges - - - - - 626,002
Capital oullay:
General government 475,576 - 398,460 - 1,193,761 1,193,761
Pubfic safety - - - - 635,780 835,780
Highways and streets - - 886,153 319,887 1,341,434 1,341,434
Culture and recreation - - 164,614 528,376 692,980 692,950
Community development - - - - 16,068 16,068
Total expenditures 475,576 - 1,449,227 248,263 3,880,033 23,072,391
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (475,576) - 1,456,163 24,262 1,253,121 (2,042,832)
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - 3,692,244
Transfers out - - - (331,000) {331,000) (331,000)
Total other financing sources and uses - - - (331,000} {331,000) 3,361,244
Net change in fund balancss (475,578) - 1,456,163 (306,738} g22 121 1,318,412
Fund Balances - January 1 - resfated 475,578 588 3,303,564 4,027,278 10,634,361 23,461,602
Fund Balances - December 31 8 - % 588 § 4,769,727 § 3,720,541 § 11,456,482 % 24,780,014
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - MOTOR VEHICLE HIGHWAY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property
Intergovernmentat
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and streets:
Personal services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outiay
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balanses

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis

To adjust revenues for accruals
To adjust expenditures for accruals

To adjust expenditures for encumbrances

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amounis {Negative)
$ 1,381,901 § 1,381,907 $ 1744416 $ 362515
1,071,322 1,071,322 2,119,421 1,048,099
5,700 5,700 5,700 -
3,000 8,000 11,067 3,067
2 466,923 2 466,923 3,880,604 1,413,681
2,190,445 2,180,445 1,827,918 362,526
752,311 752,311 573,449 178,862
550,292 550,592 449,318 101,274
280,334 630,334 277,535 3562,78¢
3,773,382 4,123,682 3,128,221 995461
(1,306,458} (1,656,759) 752,383 2,405,142
2,205,167 2,205,167 2,205,167 -
% BIBYG8 $ 545408 $ 2,957,550 § 2409142
5 762,383
4,429
63,304
262,870
$

Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - LOCAL ROAD AND STREET
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance i
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amounis {Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 491764 % 491764 $ 415,050 § {76,714)
Other - - 157 157
Total revenues 491,764 491,764 415,207 (76,557}
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and streets:
Capital outlay 594,529 694,529 512,380 182,149
Net change in fund balances (202,785} (202,765) (87,173) 105,582
Fund balances - beginning 432,657 432,657 432,657 -
Fund balances - ending $ 220892 § 228,892 § 335484 § 105,582

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis % {97,173)
To adjust revenues for accruals (3,835)
To adjust expenditures for accruals {77,608)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 368,297
Net change in fund balance, GAAF basis $ 189,681
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDBGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PARK AND RECREATION
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeied Amounts Basis Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 1854538 $ 1654833 $ 1785825 % 110,987
intergovernmentat 78,234 76,234 101,890 25,756
Charges for services 298,000 298,000 437,442 139,442
Other 57,000 - 201,794 201,754

Total revenues 2,085,872 2,028,872 2,506,851 477 878

Expenditures:
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Personal services 2,056,116 1,886,116 1,804 710 81,4086
Suppiies 352,223 387,223 310,244 76,978
Other services and charges 638,280 673,490 578,056 95,434
Capital outiay 501 601 601 -

Total expenditures 3,047 220 3,047 430 2,793,611 253,819

Net change in fund balances (951,348) {1,018,558) {286,760) 731,798
Fund balances - beginning 1,601,888 1,601,898 1,601,898 -
Fund balances - ending $ 640550 $ 583340 F 1,315138 § 731,798

BudgetGAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ {286,760)
To adjust revenues for accruals 540
To adjust expenditures for accruals 2,416
Ta adjust expenditures for encumbrances 33,080
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis $  (250,714)
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY
_For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenuss:
Intergovernmental $ 1,700,000 $ 1,700,000 $ 2,121,804 % 421804
Other - - 26,005 26,085
Total revenues 1,700,000 1,700,000 2 147 899 447 899
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Other services and charges 541,377 541,377 541,150 227
Capital outiay 1,357,000 2,973,268 2,841,076 132,192
Total expenditures 1,838,377 3,514 645 3,382,226 132,419
Net change in fund balances (238,377) (1,814,645) (1.234,327) 580,318
Fund balances - beginning 1,948,849 1,948,849 1,848,849 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1710472 % 134,204 § 714522 § 580,318

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ (1,234,327)
Te adjust expenditures for accruals 198,302
To adjust expenditures for accruals (11,791}
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 595,303

Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis $ (352,513)
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNES - RAINY DAY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounis Basis Positive
Criginal Final Ameounts {Negative)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Capital outlay $ 110,599 § 110,599 § 110,588 8§
Fund balances - beginning 1,878,820 1,878,920 1,878,920
Fund balances - ending $ 1,768,321 § 1768321 $ 1768321 §
Budget/GAAP Reconciliaticn
Net change in fund batance, budget basis $  {110,599)
To adjust expenditures for aceruals 36475
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis g 4,124}
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NCNMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - RAINY DAY PUBLIC SAFETY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Rasis Positive
Criginal Fina} Amounts {Negative)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Other services and charges $ 484 1958 § 484 196 § 484,196 $ -
Capital outlay 4,378 4,378 4,378 -
Total expenditures 488,574 488,574 488,574 -
Fund halances - beginning 491,092 491,082 491,082 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1468240 $ 1,468240 $ 1468240 $§ -

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $  (488,574)
To adjust expenditures for accruals {8,990)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 156,481

Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis §  (341,073)
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CiTY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUING EDUCATION
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Posiiive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Licenses and permits $ 10,000 § 10,000 § 13,940 $ 3,840
Charges for services 16,000 16,000 23,360 7,360
Fines and forfeits 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Other - - 1,667 1,667
Total revenues 31,000 31,000 38,967 7,967
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Supplies 35,326 35,326 34,208 1,028
Other services and charges 30,421 30,421 30,421 -
Capital outlay 34,462 34,452 33,647 815
Total expenditures 100,209 100,209 98,366 1,843
Net change in fund balances (69,209) (68,209) {58,399) 9,810
Fund balances - beginning 100,387 100,387 100,387 -
Fund halances - ending $ 31,178 §$ 31,178 3 40,988 $ 9,810

Budaet/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis 5 (59,399}
To adjust revenues for accruals 60
To adjust expenditures for accruals 6,615
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 10,955
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis 3 (41.769)
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PARK NONREVERTING OPERATING
Far The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgstary Budgat
Budgeted Amounis Basis Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 88,000 % 88,000 % 97,830 % 9,830
Other 37,000 37,000 68,315 31,315
Total revenues 125,000 125,000 166,145 41,145
Expenditures:
Current.
Culture and recreation:
Supplies 20,000 20,000 18,999 1
Capital outiay 339,836 349,851 340 867 8,964
Total expendifures 359 836 369,851 360,866 8,985
Net change in fund balances {234,838) (244,851) (184,721) 50,130
Fund balances - beginning 428,428 428,428 428,428 -
Fund balances - ending $ 183,582 3 183577 % 233,707 3 50,130
Budget/GAAP Reconciliation
Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ {194,721)
To adjust revenues for accruals 10
To adjust expenditures for accruals (2,144)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 101,046
Net change in fund balance, GAAF basis 3 95,809)
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CEBT SERVICE FUNDS - MUNICIPAL BOND NO.A
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actusl With Finaf
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property $ 1,792,683 § 1,762683 § 1,703,898 § (88,785}
Intergovernimental 71,753 71,753 98,095 26,342
Total revenues 1,864,436 1,864,436 1,801,983 (62,443)
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 1,395,000 1,385,000 4,395,000 -
Interest and fiscai agent fees 265,909 265,909 264,410 1,489
Total expenditures 1,660,909 1,660,909 1,659,410 1,459
Net change in fund balances 203,527 203,627 142,583 (60,944}
Fund balances - beginning 688,728 689,728 689,728 -
Fund balances - ending $ 893,255 $ 593,255 § 832,311 % {60,944)

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation
No reconcilement necessary since budgetary basis equals GAAP basis
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - CUMULATIVE BUILDING AND FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Pasitive
Original Final Arnounits {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property 5 50,006 $ 50,000 % 37,1156 % {12,885)
intergovernmental 1,864 1,864 2,144 280
Total revenues 51,864 51,864 38,259 {12 505)
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Public safety: .
Capital outiay 60,128 60,126 47 537 12,588
Net change in fund balances {8,262) (8,262) (8,278) (18}
Fund balances - beginning 80,897 80,897 80,897 -
Fund balances - ending 3 72835 % 72635 % 72,618 § {18}

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ (8.278)
To adjust expenditures for accruals {7,518)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 24,742
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis 3 8,846
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - CUMULATIVE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amcunts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental $ 122444 § 122444 § 133,701 % 1,257
Fund balances - beginning 856,862 856,862 856,862 -
Fund balances - ending $ 979,306 § 979306 § 990,553 % 11,257

Budget/GAAP Reconciiiation
No reconcilement necessary since budgetary basis equals GAAP basis
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - CUMULATIVE SEWER
Fer The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Criginal Final Amounts {Negative}
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property $ 624,207 $ 624,207 § 458636 § (165,568)
intergovernmental 22,984 22,984 26,492 3,508
Charges for services - - 41,543 41,543
Other - - 186,700 186,700
Total revenues 647,191 647,181 723,374 76,183
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Public safety:
Other services and charges 339,842 339,842 339,842 -
Capital outlay 980,852 980,852 980,952 -
Total expenditures 1,320,794 1,320,794 1,320,794 -
Net change in fund balances (673,603) (673,603) (597,420) 76,183
Fund balances - begirning 1,322,083 1,322,083 1,322,083 -
Fund balances - ending 3 548,480 § 548480 § 724 663 $ 76,183

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ (5497 420}
To adjust expenditures for accruals {354,872)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 1,070,647
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis $ 118,355
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - CUMULATIVE CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Intergovermmental
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
General government:

Cther services and charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis

To adjust expenditures for aceruals

To adiust expenditures for encumbrances

Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis
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Variance
Actual With Final
Budgsetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Criginal Final Amounts {Negative)
463,880 $ 463,880 5 352,585 §  (111,285)
18,567 18,567 85 969 67,402
- - 14,291 14,291
482,447 482,447 452,855 {29,582)
13,033 17,837 13,517 4,320
553,422 725765 617,190 108,575
676,455 743,602 630,707 112,895
(194,008} (261,155) (177,852) 83,303
448,561 448,661 448,561 -
254,553 $ 187408 $ 270709 § 83,303
5 (177.852)
(53,261)
228,401
] (2712}




CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - ENERGY SAVING IMPROVEMENTS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Finat Amounts (Negafive)
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
General government:
Capital outlay $ 475576 $ 475576 § 475576 3
Fund balances - beginning 475,578 475,576 475,576
Fund balances - ending % - & - 8 - $

Budgel/GAAP Reconciliation
No reconcilement necessary since budgetary basis equals GAAP basis
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDLULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - CEDIT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basls Posiiive
Criginal Final Amounts {Negafiive)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 2300000 § 2300,000 $ 2,638,726 § 336,726
Expenditures:
Capital outiay:
General government:
Gther services and charges 347,000 347,000 338476 8,524
Capital outlay 898,295 858,244 751,345 146,899
Public safety.
Capital outlay 680,559 680,559 680,559 -
Highways and streets:
Capital outlay R 1,390,916 1,390,816 1,390,916 -
Culture and recreation:
Capital outlay 183,578 383,578 383,578 -
Total expenditures 3,500,348 3,700,287 3,544,874 155,423
Net change in fund balances (1,200,348)  (1,400,297) (908,148) 492,149
Fund balances - beginning 4,038,310 4,038,310 4,038,310 -

Fund balances - ending $ 2837962 § 2638013 § 3,130,182 % 482,149

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ (908,148)
To adjust expenditures for accruats 268,664
To adjust expenditures for accruals (29,854)
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 2,125,501
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis $ 1458163
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SGHERULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - LOCAL MAJOR MOVES CONSTRUCTION
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Variance
Actuat With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
interest $ - 3 - § 2916 $ 2,916
Expenditures:
Capital outiay:
Highways and streets:
Capital outlay 1,281,318 1,281,318 1,281,318 -
Net change in fund balances {1,281,318)  {1,281,318) {1,278,402) 2,916
Fund balances - beginning 4 892 194 4,892,194 4,892,194 -
Fund balances - ending $ 3,610,876 $ 3610876 § 3,613.792 $ 2,918

Budgel/GAAF Reconciliation

Net change in fund balance, budget basis $ (1,278,402)
To adjust expenditures for accruals 7,930
To adjust expenditures for encumbrances 948 685
Net change in fund balance, GAAP basis $ (321,787
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self-Funding Insurance - To account for employer and employees' contributions for a medical
insurance plan. '

Mishawaka Bond Bank- To account for the establishment of a Lecal Improvement Bond Bank.
Original funding was provided by a $6,000,000 distribution from the City
of Mishawaka. The fund is used to provide capital financing for City
projects.
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Intergovernmental loan

Total assets

Net Assets

Unrestricted

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2011
Self Mishawzaka
Funding Bond
Insurance Bank Totals
$ 540,727 § 4,776,688 $5317415
- 1,287,322 1,287 322
¥ 540,727 § 6,084,010 $6,604737
$ 540727 § 6,064,010 §$6,604,737

-106-




Operating revenues:
Employee/employer contribufions
Interest revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Insurance claims and premiums

Operating income

Nonaperating revenues:
interest and investment revenue

Change in net assets
Met assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Self- Mishawaka
Funding Bond
insurance Bank Totals
3 8,927,950 % - 3 8,927,950
- 30,993 30,993
8,927 950 30,993 8,058,943
8,905,473 - 8,905,473
22,477 30,993 53,470
- 8,713 8,713
22,477 39,706 62,183
518,250 6,024,304 8,542,554
$ 540,727 % 6,064,010 % 6,604,737
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments for interfund services used
Cash received from interest and principal on loans
Cash paymenis for loaned amounts

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operafing activities:
Operating incorne

Adjustments to reconcile eperating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease in assets:
Intergovernmentat loans
Decrease in liabilities:
Accounts payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities
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Self- Mishawaka
Funding Bond
Insurance Bank Totals
$ 8,927,850 § - % 8,027,950
{8,906,674) - (8,906,674)
- 352,823 352,823
- {242,900) (242,900}
21,276 109,923 131,199
- 8,713 8713
21,276 118,636 139,912
519,451 4,658,052 5,177,503
3 540,727 $ A 776,688 $ 9,317,415
3 22477 § 30,093 § 53,470
R 78,930 78,930
{1,201 - (1,201)
{1,201) 78,830 77,729
3 21,276 § 109,923 3 131,199




Pension Trust Funds

1925 Police Pension -

1937 Firefighters' Pension -

Utility Pension -

Agency Funds

Special Judgment -

Redevelopment Revolving -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

To account for the provision of retirement and disability benefits te police
officers hired prior to May 1, 1977. Financing is provided by state
pension relief distributions.

To account for the provision of retirement and disability benefits to fire-
fighters hired prior to May 1, 1977. Financing is provided by state
pension relief distributions.

To account for the provision of retirement benefits to utilities’' employees.
Financing is provided by contributions from each utility.

To account for proceeds ordered by St. Joseph Superior Court to be
held by the City until finai determination of entittement by the court.

To account for administrative and operating expenditures of the

Redevelopment Department. Financing is provided by transfers from
other funds administered by this department.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

GCOMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
interest and dividends

Investments at fair value:
Government sponsored enterprise
Municipal bonds
Mutual funds

Total invesiments

Total assets

Net Asseis

Held in tfrust for:
Employees' pension benefits

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
December 31, 2011

1925 1937
Police Firefighters' Utility
Pension Pension Pension Totais
$ 655,941 § 062,372 § 18,530 § 1,636,843
- - 14,825 14,825
- - 252703 252,703
- - 1,260,647 1,260,647
- - 11,692,664 11,692 664
- 13,206,014 13,206,014
$ 5550941 % 962372 $ 13239360 $ 14,857,682
$ 68550941 $ 962372 $ 13239369 § 14,857,682
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

1825 1837
Palice Firefighters' Utility
Additions Pension Pension Pension Totals
Contributions:
(On behalf contributions $ 1,576,250 $ 2437706 § - & 4,013,956
Employer - - 598,801 588,801
Total contributions 1,676,250 2,437,706 598,501 4,612,757
investment income {loss):
Net decrease in fair vaiue of investments - - (430,618} (430,618)
Interest - - 359,165 559,185
Tatal investment income (loss) - - (71.,453) (71,453)
Less investment expense:
Investment activity expense - - 33,776 33,778
Net investment income (ioss) - - (105,226} (105,229}
Total additions 1,576,250 2437 706 493,572 4,507,628
Deductions
Benefits 1,506,849 2,369,065 778,607 4,664,521
Administrative expense 3,000 8,209 9,820 21,129
Total deductions 1,508,849 2,377,274 788,527 4 675650
Changes in net assets 56,401 50,432 (294,955 {168,122)
Net assets - beginning 589,540 901,940 13,534,324 15,025,804
Net assets - ending 5 655941 $ 962372 § 13,238,368 § 14,857,682
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -
AGENCY FUNDS

December 31, 2011

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable

Total liabilities

Special Redevelopment
Judgment Revolving Totals

$ 71,941 8 - 71,941

- 322 322
$ 71,841 % 322 72,263
g 71,841 $ - 71,941

- 322 322
5 71,941 3 322 72,263
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

AGENCY FUND

For The Year Ended December 31, 2011

Assets: :

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2011
Additions
Deductions

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2011

Accounts receivable, January 1, 2011
Additions

Accounts receivable, December 31, 2011

Total assets, December 31, 2011

Liabilities:

Accounts payable, January 1, 2011
Additions
Deducticns

Accounts payable, December 31, 2011

Accrued payroll and withholdings payable, January 1, 2011
Additions
Deducticns

Accrued payroll and withhotdings payable, December 31, 2011

Total liabllites, December 31, 2011
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Special Redevelopment
Judgment Revelving Totals

71,807 % 12,372 84 179

134 382,387 382,521
- (394,759) 1304,759)

71,941 - 71,941

- 322 322

~ 322 322

71,941 8 vl 72,263
71807 § 7121 78,928

134 - 134
- {7,121 (7,121)

71,941 - 71,941

- 5,251 5,257

- 322 322
- {5,251) (5,251}

- 322 322

71841 § 322 72,263
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STATISTICAL SECTION

(Not Covered by Auditor’s Cpinion)



CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Mishawaka's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

CONTENTS
Page(s)
Financial Trends
These schedutes contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.
Net Assets by Component 116
Changes in Net Assets : 117-118
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 119
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 120
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 121
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 122
Principal Property Tax Payers 123
Property Tax Levies and Collections 124
Debt Capacity
These Schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 125
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding 126
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 127
Legal Debt Margin 128
General Obligation and TIF Bond Coverage 129

Revenue Bond Coverage 130
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Largest Employers
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

Operating Indicators by Function

Capital Asset Statistics by Function

115

131

132

133

134
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Govemnmental selivities
Invested In capilal assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Tolal governmental activities net assols

Business-lype activities
luvested in capita! assels, not of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total buginess-type activities net assels

Primary government
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Rastricted
Unrestricled

Tolal primary government nel assets

Note:Y vears of dala available in this format

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

2011 2010 2009 008 2007 2006 0 2004 2003
§ 134,670,237 136,795,681 & 116,942,337 97252178 69,230,461 § 55,396,506 43,584,806 $ 37,867,826 31,127,147
2,854,701 2,692,556 - - - 993 490 1,184,297 447219 1773669
47.612,406 34,769,529 44,630,003 31,666,692 33,332,008 25,069,658 22743313 22216544 18422223
£ 185,122,344 174,257,766 8 161,577,340 128,919,470 102,769.469 §  81,459654 67512416 $ 60,531,589 51,323,038
$ 93,926,004 66,000,580 § 85,021,905 81,373,181 76,739,094 § 33,687,505 58414662 § 49993152 49,875,915
6,957,189 7,378,580 5,340,800 8,301,530 7,783,873 6,886,627 3,321,019 2316192 1921475
23,538,726 47,432 882 21,755,544 16,551,499 20,539,948 29,319,393 21,037,256 22,145,131 14,550,025
§ 124421979 § 120902042 § 132,118,249 106,426,190 105464915 §  89.593,925 82,772,937 § 74451075 66,347 435
$228596301 3 202,886261 % 201,969,242 178,825,539 145,969,555 % 109,084,411 101,999.468 § 87560978 $1,003,082
9,796,890 10,071,136 5,340,800 8,301,530 7.785,873 7.880,117 4,505,316 2,764,011 3,695,144
71,151,132 82202411 66,385,547 48,218,191 54,478,956 54,380,051 43,780,569 44,357,675 32,572,247
$309,544.323 § 295,159,808 § 273,695,589 235,345,060 208,234.384 §  171353,579 150,285.355 §  134.982,664 117,671,473
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
N 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government § 7,067,985 & 7,509,133 § 56754459 § 5362211 $ 4008462 § 5220058 § 5874794 § 5922122 § 9493699
Public safety 25,631,615 29,219,741 25,470,868 22,188,373 17,750,725 25,344,096 23,380,191 19,352,725 14,025,776
Highways and streets 6,927,174 1,816,872 5,948,204 ' 3,959,300 1,631,344 4,954,058 4,745,217 3,834,150 3,477,533
Sanitation 1,954,482 1,958,050 1,970,859 4,500 15,000 4,876 20,000 35,725 115,742
Community development 2,191,347 1,936,054 862,58] 2,723,191 2,337,991 997,139 2,657,176 3,201,954 1,984,448
Culture and recreation 6,062,941 4,936 870 4,084,573 4,786,048 3,352,339 3,452,283 3,595,595 3,148419 4,626,859
Interest on long-term debt 627,328 862 261 1,087,319 1,274,966 873,678 669,642 847,749 795,567 1,231,273
Total governmental activities expenses $ 55362872 § 48242011 $ 45000853 § 40208589 $ 35969539 § 40643052 § 41,120722 § 36290668 § 34955332
Business type activities:
Water utility 3 6699816 § 6,779.663 § 6933322 § 6,884,829 § 6617400 § 6704418 § 6,597,036 $§ 6973978 $§ 6553431
Wastwater utility 11,541,256 11,507,526 11,566,254 11,854,930 6,377,448 554712 3,849,788 5,747,658 5,745,703
Electric utitity 46,813,781 49,900,556 43,830,644 44,275,026 42.999,782 35,934,114 34,530,146 33,182,687 313,809,655
Total business-type activities expenses 68,054,853 68,188,185 62,330,220 63,114,785 55,594,699 48,276,244 45,976,970 45904323 46,068,789
Total primary govemnment expenses $ 123417725 $116430,196 § 107,430,073 $ 103413374 § 91964238 § 88919206 § BE097.602 $ 82194991 § 81,024,121
Program Reyenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government 498,317 645,300 714,830 1,049,593 973,320 892 455 941,008 952,084 3,355,867
Public safety 1,702,518 817,492 . 600,824 643,933 896,332 657,308 344,116 343,324 493,067
Highways and streets 132,033 118,354 114,428 28347 44,617 27.462 343,430 232,955 1,216,084
Sanitation 2,074,781 2,084,642 2,102,200
Community development 586,681 150,529 260,098 535,101 794,695 624,524 156,850 103,228 235,297
Cultre and recreation 938,755 1,093,526 995,386 1,023,173 1,033,864 015,956 913,704 811,378 788,792
Interest on long-term debt
Operating grants and contributions 4,411,768 4,450,139 3,283,506 1,151,352 2,400,908 1,257,136 1,661,515 2,143,953 1,823,220
Capital grants and contributions 5,834.032 6,851,310 4,358,580 4,745,714 4,944 558 10,410,884 4,326,826 4,494.949 3,750,172
Total governmental activities revenue 16,178,886 16,251,302 12429852 $.217,213 11,088,360 14,785,725 8,687 450 9,082,471 11,662,499
Business type activities:
Charges for services:
Water utility 7,721,103 7,881,467 7,574,977 8,037,964 8,356,853 7,804,735 8,074,554 7,516,477 7,683,485
Wastwater utility 13,047,673 11,163,904 9,333,576 9,422,150 9,576,399 8,284,304 7,797,148 6,927,799 6,355,832
Eleetric urility 50,153,710 50,363,745 46,262,804 43,278,603 47457258 37,573,938 37,031,707 38,422,097 34,720,277
Capital grants and contributions 167,104 6,652,868 5,113,577 3,250,069 3,044,903 1,656,673 1,451,446 846,168 567,998
Tota! business-type activities revenue 71,089,592 76,061,984 68,284,934 63,088,786 68,435,413 55,319,650 54,354,855 53712,541 49337592
Total primary government revenue 87,268,478 92,313,286 £0,714,786 73,205,955 79,523,773 70,105,375 63,042,305 62,795,012 61,000,081
Net (Expenses) Revenues
Governmental activities: (39,183,986) (31,990,709) (32,670,001} {31,081,376) (24.881,179) (25,857,327 {32,433,272) (27,208,197)  (23,292,833)
Business-lype activities 3,034,739 7,873,799 5,954,714 874,001 12,440,714 7,043,406 7,377,885 7,808,218 3,268,803
Total primary government net expense 8 (36149247) $ (24116010} § (26715287) § (30207.375) § (12440465) § (18813.921) § (25055387) § (19.399.979 §{20,024,030)

Note: ¢ years of data available in this format
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General revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:

Property Taxes
Grants and Contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Other
Laoss on sale of Assets
Special Items: Litigation Seftlement
Transfers
Total governmental activities
Business lype activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings
Other
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary govemment expenses

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Business-type activities
Total primary government

Note: & years of data available in this format

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
{continued)
011 010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2008 2004 2003
§ 44782236 § 49872423 § 40,092,134 § 43572448 § 40325388 § 34,552,665 § 35172645 § 31,758,286 § 32,066,343
8,206,595 3,570,832 4,943 387 3,846,190 1,794,657 3,808,206 3,667 444 4,201,761 4,033,427
34,289 42251 13,342 872,954 2,022,465 1,908,152 981,043 278,677 196,261
354,814 115,993 169,346 267,649 2,345 51,568 41,646 268,780 171,491
- - - - - - (243,984)
- - - §,154,350
(3,578,955) (762.454) 959,856 517,736 46,139 (79,102) {205,595} (90,756)
$ 45798930 § 57830045 § 46178265 § 57231377 § 46,190,994 § 40241502 § 39414099 § 36416748 § 36467522
£ 112,130 §$ 15,686 § 24935 % 605,010 § 1,802,870 § 1,372,025 % 738,382 § 204,666 § 198,056
- - 672,266
3,578,995 762,454 (959,856) {517,736 (46,139} 79,102 205,555 90,756
3,691,125 778,140 (262,655) 87,274 1,756,731 1,451,127 943,977 295 422 198,056
$ 53,450,064 § 58617185 § 45015610 % 573184651 § 47947725 8§ 41692620 § 40358076 § 36,712,170 § 36665578
$§ 10,614,953 § 25848336 § 13,508,264 $ 26,150,001 § 21309815 § 14384175 § 6980,827 § 9,208,551 3 13,174,689
$ 6725864 $ 8651939 ¥ 5692059 § 961,275 § 14197445 § 8494533 § 8321862 § 8103640 $ 3,466,859
8 17340817 § 34500275 3% 16200323 §.2A101276 § 35507260 § 22878708 § 15302989 $.17312.191 § 16,641,548
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2008 2004 2003

General Fund

Nonspendahle

Restricted

Comtnitted

Assigned 17,917 77,221 59,968 60,901 407,757 436,498 439,113 190,847

Unassigned 6,113,323 5,554,114 6,218,193 5,256,482 1,191,764 2,560,240 1,982,889 1,771,831 2,177,804
Total general fund § 6131240 % 5534)14 56205414 § 5316450 § 1252465 § 2967997 8 2419387 § 2210946 § 2368651
All Other Governmental Funds

Nonspendable 12,657,121 21,323,691 14,182,700 16,411,776 16,639,539 15,647,856 18,127,410 12,548,773 14,452,166

Restricted 17.555,195

Comimitted 6,673,080 36,269,879 35,662,925 40,459,220 51,543,352 35,317,342 20,599,512 26,196,034 19,431,581

Assigned 25,122,445

Total all other governmental funds $ 62,007,851 § 37593570 § 46845625 §,.56870996 $ 68182861 § 50965198 £ 47726922 $ 38744807 § 33883747

Note:9 years of data available in this format
Note:changes made to report dus to GASE Statement No, 54
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Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest

Sale and use of property
Gifts and donations
Other

Total primary government expenses

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service

Pringipal

Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other finaneing sources(uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Bond issuance cost
Start up contribution for Mishawaka Bond Bank
Refunding bonds issued
General obligation bond issuance
Discount on bond issuance
Capital lease Issuance
Payment to refunded bend escrow agent
Interfund revenue hond issuance
Loan Issuance- short term
Tatal other financing sources and uses

Special Item: Proceeds from Litigation settlement
Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of non-capital
expenditures

Note:9 years of data available in this format

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
2008 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2003 2004 2003
§45201,867 § 46,375,159 § 40,092.134 $ 47591213 § 38337,107 § 35575614 § 35083567 § 31755211 § 32.034.284
418,629 372,568 349,680 607,371 543,226 456,108 313,155 320,811 306,397
18,452,396 19,912,281 12,585,473 5,932,199 11,083,085 15,239,090 9,626,565 10,839,199 10,679,742
4,191,057 3,336,355 3,412,746 1,565,526 1,712,906 1,645,234 1,795,176 1,451,691 2,830,702
53,098 108,165 47,051 48,797 76,653 59,303 88,543 84,243 106,222
34,289 42,251 13,542 872,904 2,022,465 1,908,162 981,943 278,677 196,261
276,241 288,654 243,067 275,255 120,004 348,167 108,537 166,146 803,226
120,587 181,674 192,726 140,278 118,607 109,613 50,933 171,127 126,139
1.225.387 538.630 711,842 810,509 1,173,741 790,441 344,371 478.331 1,020,858
69,976,451 71,355,537  57.648261 610441727 _ 55187836 _ 56131734 _ 48432830 _ 45585436 48,103,871
5,883,077 4,866,112 4,421,867 4,218,163 3,296,707 4,812,775 5,512,833 4,861,220 8,695,207
27,184,126 24,997,945 19,095,252 19,330,286 20,279,335 18,390,523 17,103,962 16,198,407 12,300,290
3,290,704 3,705,758 3,516,087 4,513,971 4,747,151 3,291,749 4,455,162 4,006,762 3,596,912
1,054,482 1,958,050 1,970,859 4,500 15,000 4,876 20,000 35,725 115,742
3,146,304 2,799,182 2,811,787 3,340,62¢ 3,223,074 2,970,164 3,108 446 3,524,618 3,208,792
2,204,477 1,575,950 1,017,300 1,202,378 1,828,843 1,204,852 2,126,001 3,053,748 1,365,347
14,229,063 23,447,858 23,026,579 33,975,819 21217470 20,352,125 8,195,714 7,613,045 9,733,795
4,909,254 5,749,157 5,710,522 4,521,647 3,456,429 2,606,451 3,064,530 2,860,884 8,122,845
626,002 852,078 1,084,271 1,203,773 607,737 611,817 586,338 782,120 1,194,427
63429480  €9.952.690 _ 64,654524 72311168  S8.67L746 54245332 _ 44176986 42,936,529 48,330,357
6,546,962 1,402,847  (7.006263) (10,366,996)  (3483.010) 1886402 4,255,844 2,648,907 (226,486)
6,613,316 7,362,007 6,174,587 7,281,350 3,700,993 3,963,940 5,323,770 2,274,386 1,216,446
(T.052,244)  (8,124461)  (S214731)  (6,763,614)  (3,654,854)  (4,043,042)  (5,520365)  (2,365,122)  (1,916,446)
- - - - (87,079) (28,61%) (123,612) (41,035)
- - - {6,000,000)
- - - - 2,625,000 (2,683,377
- - - - 17,800,000 1,550,000 5,000,000 2,724,412
- - . . (180,977) (5,000) (62,332)
- - - . 817,499 367,932
- - . - (2,557,799)
1,360,252
- - - 446,760 590,689 495,205 250,050 1,747,272 600,000
(438,928) 603,798 959,856 (5,035,504)  18,986271 1,936,484 4,934,712 2,054,448 600,000
- - . 8,154,390 - . . 3 )
$ 6108034 § 2006645 § (6,046,407) § (7,248,110) $ 15502361 § 3822886 $ 919055 § 4703355 $§ 373,514
11.3% 14.2% 17.1% 14.9% 10.9% 9.5% 10,1% 10,3% 24.1%

120




CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Fiscal
Year Total Taxable Total
Ended - Real Personal Assessed Direct Tax
December 31 Property Property Value Rate
2002 622,477,285 397,447,827 1,019,925,112 1.8627
2003 1,253,760,445 394,264,475 1,648,024,920 1.2476
2004 1,208,609,588 346,458,605 1,555,068,193 (1) 1.3313
- 2005 1,210,835,883 360,559,477 1,571,395,360 1.3382
2006 1,232,572,354 346,777,992 1,579,350,346 1.3899
2007 1,543,475,510 207,350,000 1,750,825,510 1.3326
2008 1,455,483,993 152,870,480 1,608,354,473 1.5283
2009 1,199,456,581 190,860,770 1,390,317,351 1.6557
2010 1,234,269,393 208,951,270 1,443,220,663 1.6741
2011 1,222,738,085 206,998,725 1,429,736,810 1.7362

(1) Net assessed valuation decreased in the tax year payable 2004 because of expansion of the
Interstate Commerce Exemption for inventory assessments

Note: Beginning with 2002 taxes payable in 2003, reaf property is valued for assessment
purpoeses at its"true tax value" as defined in the Real Property Assessment Rule,

S0 IAC 2.3., the 2002 Real Property Assessment Manual, as adopted by the DLGF, The manual defines
"true tax value” as " the matket value in use of property for its current use
as reflected by the utility received by the owner or & similar user from the property.”

Note; Beginning 2008 Shift in personal to real property realized after deleting the inventory tax in Indiana
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) (B)

Fiscal

Year St Joseph

Ended Redevelopment School St Joseph St Joseph State of County

December 31 City Townships District Library Districts County Airport Transpo  Indiana Welifare Total

2002 1.8627 0.0221 0.0000 0.1567 2.2303 0.9473 0.0406 0.1079 0.0033 0.0000 5.3709
2003 1.2476 0.0163 0.0502 0.1325 1.4205 0.7366 0.0472 0.0768 0.0033 0.0000 37310
2004 1.3313 0.0172 0.0565 0.1319  1.5932 0.7652 0.034¢ 0.0827 0.0024 0.0000 4.0150
2005 1.3382 0.0171 0.0540 0.8277  1.5691 0.7831 0.0297 0.0831 0.0024 0.0000 4.0044
20006 1.3899 0.0318 0.0520 0.1325 1.6726 0.5002 0.0301 0.0856 0.0024 0.4897 43868
2007 1.3326 0.0268 0.0000 0.1276¢ 1.6892 0.4581 0.0277 0.0821 0.0024 0.4130 4.1595
2008 1.5283 0.0279 0.0000 0.0943  1.6448 .4989 0.0292 0.0821 0.0024 0.2587 4.1666
2009 1.6557 0.0397 0.0000 0.1437 1.0735 0.5693 0.0353 0.0821 0.0000 0.0000 3.5993
2010 [.6741 0.0288 0.0000 0.1583 1.3221 0.5866 0.0342 0.0821 0.0000 0.000C 3.8862
2011 1.7362 0.0287 0.0000 0.1462 1.3381 0.5424 0.0297 0.0934 0.0000 0.0000 3.9147

(B) Source: St. Joseph County Auditor Certificate of Tax rates
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Taxpayer

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

Type of Business

Edward Rose of Indiana
University Park Associates
Meijer

Main Street Village

Bayer Corporation
Wal-Mart Stores

Douglas Road Broadcasting
Gumwood Shopping Center
CW,LLC

Princess City Plaza

Gurley Leep

Jordan Ford

Sears

Amerisource

RMG Foundry

Totals

Source; St. Joseph County Auditor

Real Estate Developer
Retail/Management
Retail

Rental Multi-Housing
Manufacturing

Retail
Communications
Retail

Retirement Community
Retail

Automotive Dealership
Automotive Dealership
Retail Store
Merchandising

Iron Castings Foundry

Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

80,906,000
50,748,100
34,797,100
32,302,300
28,309,860
27,720,570
22,381,870
20,969 300
17,097,000

14,684,800 .

8329916900
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Rank FPercentage of
Total Taxable
Assessed

Value

5.66%
3.55%
2.43%
2.26%
1.98%
1.94%
1.57%
1.47%
1.20%
1.03%

20.89%

Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

19,539,260
19,671,650
28,347,220

54,093,750
16,034,440

14,587,700
10,445,820
14,481,840
15,754,440

8,905,420

201,861,540

o ooo WO~

—
<

Percentage of
Total Taxable
Assessed

Value

1.94%
1.95%
2.81%

537%
1.59%

1.45%
1.04%
1.44%
1.56%
0.88%




CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year Total Tax Collected within the
Ended Levy for Fiscal Year of the Levy
December 31 Fiscal Year Amount Percentage of Levy
2003 $ 19,628,694 § 18,647,259 95.00%
2004 20,323,476 20,303,722 99.90%
2005 20,786,722 19,786,861 95.19%
2006 22,018,614 21,137,869 96.00%
2007 23,331,502 20,391,862 87.40%
2008 24,580,481 23,330,377 94.91%
2009 23,019,485 21,150,066 91.88%
2010 24,171,640 22,846,514 94.52%
20F1 24,743,565 23,471,734 94.86%

Source: St. Joseph County Auditor
Note: City of Mishawaka Corporation cellections only

Note:9 years of data available in this format
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Fiscal
Year

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Governmental Activites

General Tax Increment
Obligation Revenue

Bonds Bonds
3,500,000 9,335,000
3,250,000 8,350,000
7,640,000 7,450,000
8,525,000 6,325,000
10,745,000 19,945,000
9,775,000 17,375,000
8.485,000 13,365,000
7,145,000 9,210,000
3,750,000 5,870,000

State
Revolving
Loan

1,670,000
2,399,936
1,127,082
847,397
558,753
263,000
9,000

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
Business Type Activities
Inter Water Wastewater State Total Percentage

Capital Governmental Revenue Revenue Revalving Capital Primary of Personal Per(l1}

Leases Loan Bonds Bonds Loan Leases Government income Capita
596,067 4,890,000 11,373,611 21,872,895 599,562.00 53,837,135 3.85% 1156.37
536,424 4,715,000 10,552,005 227269255  523,635.00 52,596,303 1.70% 1125.72
393,775 4,530,000 9,720,813 42,701,253 356,427.00 73,919,350 4.99% 1387.72
247,008 4,330,000 17,330,654 55,361,331 212,419 93,178,859 5.92% 2001.39
815,667 4,310,000 16,437,141 56,212,045 51,686 109,075,292 6.72% 234283
576,533 4,055,000 15,265,945 55,546,339 68,148 102,924 965 5.10% 221073
340,011 3,785,000 14,088 484 54,637,118 32,224 94,821,837 5.87% 2036.68
174,254 1,366,252 3,495,000 50,053,352 56,575,326 - 128,019,184 7.91% 265314
- 1,093,002 3,190,000 48,408,474 35,536,497 194,320 120,042,293 7.42% 248782

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
(1} See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data

Note: & years of data available in this format
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Percentage of

Estimated
General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value(1) of Per
Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property Capita(2)
2002 3,880,000 694,634 3,185,366 0.3% 68.42
2003 3,500,000 691,743 2,808,257 0.2% 60.32
2004 3,250,000 638,792 2,611,208 0.2% 56.09
2003 7,640,000 556,263 7,083,737 0.5% 152.15
2006 8,525,000 448,846 8,076,154 0.5% 173.47
2007 10,745,000 471,651 10,273,349 0.6% 220.66
2008 9,775,000 731,989 9,043,011 0.6% 194.24
2009 8,485,000 595,262 7,889,738 0.6% 169.46
2010 7,145,000 689,228 6,455,772 0.4% 133.79
2011 5,750,000 917,276 4,832,724 0.3% 100.16

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
(2) See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

As of December 31, 2011
Qutstanding Estimated Estimated
Debt at Percentage Share of
December 31, Applicable Overlapping
Governmental Units(3) 2011(1) b (2) Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
City Direct Debt {Governmental Activities) $ 7,145,000 100.00% 7,145,000
QOverlapping Debt:
School City of Mishawaka 51,045,380 98.92% 50,494,090
Mishawaka-Penn Library 5,775,000 46.95% 2,711,363
Penn-Harris-Madison School Corporation 76,781,618 22.08% 16,953,381
St. Joseph County 52,898,607 17.56% 9,288,995
St. Joseph County Airport Authority 10,775,000 17.56% 1,892,090
St. Joseph County Public Library 10,830,000 3.11% 336,813
South Bend Commﬁnity Schoo! Corporation 195,692,271 3.32% 6,496,983
Subtotal for Overlapping Debt 403,797,876 _ 88,173,715
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt(4) $ 403,797,876 5 95,318,715

Notes: (1) Includes General Obligation Bonded Debt and Capital Leases
(2} Source: St. Joseph County Auditor
(3} Source: Debt Quistanding provided by each governmental unit.
(4) Overlapping is debt is calculated on the overlapping units assessed value divided by the city's assessed value.
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Fiscal Yenr Fiscal Yeur Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiseal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2087 2008 2005 2H0 2011

Assossed Valse (2) $  3ISEO0000 F 549341640 B 508,862,922 § 323,121,607 § 526430115 § 583,608,503 § 536,118,137 § 463,439,117 § 431,073,554 § 476,578,937
Dabt Limit Percentage 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% M 2% 2% % 2%
Debt Limit(1) 13,435,600 21,973,066 20,354,517 20,924,367 21,058,005 23,344,340 21,444,726 18,537,365 19,242,942 19,063,157
Bonds Qutstanding 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,250,000 7,640,000 8525000 10,745,000 G, 775,000 8,485,000 7,145,000 5,750,000

Subtotal 9,935,600 18,473 666 17,104,517 13,284,867 12,533,003 12,592,340 11,669,726 10,052,565 12,097,942 13,313,157
Amount Available for Debt Service 691,743 691,743 538,792 556,263 448,846 471,651 731,089 595,262 689,228 217,276
Legal Debt Margin § 10,627,343 § 19,165,469 § 11743309 % 13841120 § 12,981,85] § 13070991 § 12401715 § 10,647,827 § 12,787,170 14,230,433
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt fimit 32.93% 18.264% 18.32% 55.20% 63.67% 82.20% 78.82% 79.65% 55.88% 40.41%

Mate: (1) Logal dobt it should not exceed 2% of 1/3 of the assessed vatuation io enah distriet.
Ihe city has 4 park district and o civil city district
(2} Net asessed valuntion decrewserl in the fax year poyeble 2004 becaure of expunsion of the
Interstule Cammerse Ixemption for inventory assessmenty
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
GENERAL OBLIGATION AND TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING BONDS COVERAGE

Ratio of Debt

Service to

Tax Incremental Total General Total General

General Obligation Bonds Financing Bonds Total Bonded Government Government

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service Expenditures Expenditures
2002 355,000 211,380 940,600 820,612 2,326,992 36,157,630 7.7%
2003 380,000 193,435 935,000 512,105 2,020,540 48,330,357 4.2%
2004 405,000 174,030 985,000 464,646 2,028,676 45,660,941 4.4%
2005 610,000 72,851 1,035,000 367,966 2,085,817 44,300,598 4.7%
2006 ' 665,000 229,644 1,125,000 329,627 2,349,271 54,273,951 4.3%
2007 780,000 281,091 1,180,000 272,642 2,513,733 58,758,825 4.3%
2008 970,000 438,940 2,570,000 709,778 4,688,718 72,311,168 6.5%
2009 1,290,000 357,376 4,010,000 689,471 6,340,847 64,654,524 9.8%
2010 1,340,000 311,150 4,155,000 519,348 6,325,498 69,952,690 9.0%
2011 1,395,000 262,409 3,340,600 352,121 5,349,530 63,429,489 8.4%
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

Net Revenue

Direct Available
Gross Operating for Debt Debt Service Requirements

Year Revenue (A) Expenses (B) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2002 47,915,590 40,044,928 7,870,662 1,310,000 722,886 2,032,886 387.2%
2003 46,510,389 43,611,528 2,898,861 825,000 415,403 1,240,403 233.7%
2004 51,163,298 39,915,099 11,248,199 1,180,000 471,727 1,651,727 681.0%
2005 51,696,748 41,056,799 10,639,949 1,210,000 445,885 1,655,885 642.6%
2006 52,336,869 42,827,150 9,509,679 1,243,000 461,096 1,706,096 557.4%
2007 65,462,854 49,998,303 15,464,551 1,655,000 621,380 2,276,380 679.3%
2008 57,798,526 51,847,654 5,950,872 1,710,000 565,949 2,275,949 261.5%
2009 60,925,718 51,057,879 9,867,839 1,785,000 516,422 2,301,422 428.8%
2010 66,378,913 56,937,984 9,440,929 2,220,000 1,529,517 3,749,517 251.8%
2011 68,421,077 57,127,195 11,293,882 3,415,000 1,944,950 5,359,950 210.7%
Notes: (A) Includes operating and nonoperating revenue.

(B} Includes total operating expenses less depreciation expenses.
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Year

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2014

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

K-12 Public
§t. Joseph County 8t Joseph County School §t. Joseph County
St Joseph County Median Family Per Capita Median Enrollment Labor Unemployment
Population(B) Personal Income (B) Income (B) Income (B) Age (B) {A) Force (B) Rate-B
46,557 7,946,402 37,140 30,019 349 5,102 131,736 5.3%
46,557 8,266,157 39,940 31,246 349 5,177 132,550 5.1%
46,557 8,433,861 37,871 31,846 350 5,178 133,939 5.2%
46,557 9,289,258 39,046 33,815 35.0 5,242 134,788 5.1%
46,557 9,283,064 44,706 34,857 35.0 5,272 133,337 4.9%
46,557 9,571,597 43,931 36,229 360 5,116 133,363 6.5%
46,357 9,148,555 43,544 34,712 350 5,043 123,867 11.8%
48,252 8,891,812 42,316 33322 36.2 5,288 125,853 10.0%
48,252 ) @) @) D) 4,578 125,274 9.6%

Notes: Per Capita Income is for 8t. Joseph County, Indtana
Unemployment rate is for St. Joseph County, Indiana
Personal Income is for St. Joseph County, Indiana
Laber Force is for St Joseph County, Indiana

Note:

A} Source: School City of Mishawaka
{B) Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics
{D) Information not available at this time

9 years of data available in this format
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Company

Type of Business

St. Joseph Regional Medical Center
School City of Mishawaka

Meijer, Inc

Walmart

City of Mishawaka

Liberty Mutual

Famity & Childrens Center
Nyloncraft

Bethel College

Bayer Corporation

Note: (A) Source: Individual Companies
{B) Based on 129,274 employment of 8t. Joseph County
© Based on 137,040 employment of St. Joseph County

Acute Healthcare

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
LARGEST EMPLOYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2011

011

Number of
Employees

2,556
1,010

634
505
499
450
303
303
291
250

132

—

Percentage(B)
Rank of total Emplovment

0.0196
0.0077
0.0051
0.0039
0.0041
(00335
0.0033
0.0016
0.0032
0.0040

2002

Numher of

Percentage(C)
Employees Rank of total Employment

950
801
730
355
566
343
365
405
302
900

e LD B W o—

—_
L]

Favd

0.0069
0.0038
(.0067
0.0026
0.0041
0.0044
0.0026
0.0032
0.0022
0.0051
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Function

Police
Arrests
Parking Violations
Traffic Violations
Traffic Accident Calls
Cases Reviewed

Fire
Fire Calls
Medical Calls
Inspections

Streets
Blocks of Streets Paved
Leaf Pickup Cubic Yards
Blocks of Streets Swept

Culture & recreation
Pool Attendance(patrons)
Community Ctr Attendance
Facility Rentals
Plantings

Water
New service lines
Average daily consumption MGD

Yastewalter

Annual Sewage Treatment
( billions of gallons)
Polluntants removed
(in mill of 1hs.}

Electric
Energy consumption (kW)

(in thousands)

Unplanned cutages

011

3,300
1,188
5,531
2,060
8,028

1,207
4,804
1,500
85
14,500
565
17,131
41,165
1,447
902
54
755
42
72

621,122

11

Note:9 years of data available in this format

Source; Various city departments

CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
QPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

016 2009 2008 007
1869 2,006 1633 2,241
1,218 1622 2546 2,510
4,080 9364 7276 4,125
2,037 1969 2382 2424
8,135 8,675 8207 8,093
1260 1026 1066 201
4467 4157 4384 4,352
1423 1372 1150 1,603
65 73 88 123
15,062 18390 11075 11,332
443 637 620 799
18014 16810 18860 19,573
48388 43,120 49645 46,730
1116 1579 1135 544
166 145 86 129
50 56 42 206
7.85 6.6 821 10
4.6 4.6 52 42
7.0 7.0 6.8 6.5
597,728 538,572 623,032 642,779

22

11

134

14

16

006

2,350
1,474
4,568
2,453
8,114

213
4,123
917

136
16,338
833
18,512
53,000
770
213

428

4.5

8.5

Fang
<
=
h

|
|

2,059
2,289
4,044
2,717
1812

253
4,191
1,106

99
10,132
1,092

18,176
30355
696
95
419

9

43

8.5

637,903 617257

7

12

)
=
=]
-

2,256
2,692
4,163
2,832
8,106

334
4,108
964
119
14,010
899
10,740
42,023
404
502

288

44
8.5
588,830
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8911

244
4,131
875
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11,850
1,365
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55,961
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69
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA, INDIANA
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2067
Function
Police
Stations 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol Units 89 89 89 89 39
Fire
Stations 5 5 5 5 5
Streets
Miles of Streets 177.04 17540 175.13 174,30 17430
Street Lights 3538 3538 3538 3737 3737
Traffic Signals 58 58 58 56 55
Culture & recreation
Park Acreage 318 318 318 318 318
Number of Parks 28 28 28 28 28
Golf Courses 1 1 1 1 1
Swimming Pools 2 2 2 2 2
Tennis Courts 12 12 12 12 12
Communty Centers 1 1 1 1 1
Water
Total connections (taps) 17109 17100 17082 17082 17001
Fire Hydrants 2812 2773 2738 2698 2630
Wastewater
Miles of Sewers 272.02 271.37 257.08 254.41 25323
Electric
Number of Sub-stations [1 11 11 11 11
Miles of Service Lines
above/betow ground 303 303 303 303 303

Source: Various city departiments

Note: 9 years of data available in this format
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- STATE OF INDIANA

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
302 WEST WASHINGTON STREET
ROOMEA418
INDIANAPOLIS, INDTANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/sboa

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF MiSHAWAKA, ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the agaregate remaining fund information of the City of Mishawaka (City), as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated May 21, 2012, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man-
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of defi-
ciencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify al deficiencies in internal conirol over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
{Continued)

Compliance

As part of abtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financiai statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, praviding an opinion on compliance with those provi-
sions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City's management, City Council,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. In accordance with Indiana Code 5-11-5-1,
this report is a part of the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
May 21, 2012
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STATE OF INDIANA

ROOM E418

INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204-2769

Telephone: (317) 232-2513
Fax: (317) 232-4711
Web Site: www.in.gov/sboa

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF MISHAWAKA ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Mishawaka {City) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circutar A-133 Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The City's major federal program is identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the
City's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompiiance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Gity's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum-
stances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied in all material respects with the requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with require-
ments that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order tc determine our audit-
ing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and repert on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
CQOULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
(Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normai course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compli-
ance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any defi-
ciencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated May 21, 2012. Cur audit was performed for
the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statemanis. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for pur-
poses of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic finan-
cial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

This reporti is intended solely for the information and use of the City's management, City Council,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is nof intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties. In accordance with indiana Code 5-11-5-1, this report is a part of
the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

May 21, 2012
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Pass-Thraugh

Federai Entity {Or Other) Total
Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awartds
Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title Number Number Expended
U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Grant:
CDBG-Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B1OMC180017 $ 482,001
B11MC180017 56,696
Total for program 548,696
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant ARRA Entitlernent Grants {CDBG-R) (Recovery Act Funded) 14253 B-09-MY-18-0017 33,078
Total for chuster 881,772
Pass-Through Indiana Heusing and Community Development Authority
CDBG-State Administered COBG Cluster
Community Development Biock Grants/State's Program and Non Entitlement Grants In Hawali 14.228 NSP3 38,527
{State Administered Small Cities Program) NSP1 552,348
Total for cluster 590,875
Pass-Through St. Joseph County Housing Consortium
HOME Investrent Partnerships Program 14.239 HO-10-840 228,149
HO-11-840 66,833
Total for program 292,882
Total for federal grantor agency 1,465,628
1.8 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Grant
JAG Program Cluster
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2011DJBX3358 8,691
Pass-Through the City of Scuth Bend 2008DJBX0134 14,609
2010DJBX0855 28,038
Total for cluster 50,338
Direct Grarit
Buletproof Yest Partnership Program 16,607 3,192
Direct Grant
Public Safety Parnership and Community Pelicing Grants 16,710
COPS Technology Grant 2009CKWX0555 210,000
COPS Hiring Grant 2010UMWXD116 25,632
Totat for program 235832
Total for federal grantor agency 289 162
U.S. DERPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass-Through Indiana Criminal Justice Institute
Highway Safety Cluster
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures incentive Grants | 20.601 PT-11-04-04-21 107,222
PT-12-04-04-18 26,688
K8-11-03-03-28 65,262
Ke-12-03-03-27 9,662
CA-2011-08-01-16 25,493
RD-11-02-02-21 8,722
Pass-Through St. Joseph County Prosecutor EACT D3104122 34.673
Total for federal granior agency 278,722
1.8, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Pass-Thyough Indiana Finance Authority
Capitalization Grants fer Clean Water State Revolving Funds 65.458 C818232701 55,732
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Ravolving Funds 66.458 WWGR3E7103 1,198,882
Total for federal grantor agency 1,254,624
Total federal awards expended $ 3,286,137

The accompanying noies are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.




Note 1.

Note 2.

CITY OF MISHAWAKA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity
of the City of Mishawaka (primary government)} and is presented in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America which is the basis of accounting used in
the presentation of the financial statements. Accordingly, the amount of federal awards expended is
based on when the activity related to the award occurs. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the primary government provided federal
awards to subrecipients as follows for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Amount
Provided to
Program Title Subrecipients
CDBG-Entitliement and (HUD-Administered)
Small Cities Cluster $ 74,380
Highway Safety Cluster 156,242
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section 1 ~ Summary of Auditor's Resuits

Financial Statements:
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? no
Significant deficiencies identified? none reported
Nencompliance material to financial statements noted? no

Federal Awards:

Internat control over major program:

Material weaknesses identified? no
Significant deficiencies identified? none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 no

Identification of Major Program:

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
66.458 ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds

Doliar threshold used fo distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes

Section H — Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section |l — Federat Award Findings and Questiioned Cosfs

No matters are reportable,
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CITY OF MISHAWAKA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

No matters are reportable.
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